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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PLACE OF INCORPORATION
Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (appointed on 17 February 2023)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhu Weiwen (appointed as Director on 20 March 2023 and
re-designated on 29 February 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick
Mr. Lam Wai Hung
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard (appointed on 17 November 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (appointed on 17 February 2023)

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

25th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (appointed on 17 February 2023)
Mr. Zhu Weiwen (appointed on 29 February 2024)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Wai Hung (Chairman)
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard (appointed on 17 November 2023)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 November 2023)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick

Mr. Lam Wai Hung
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Wai Hung

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard (appointed on 17 November 2023)

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (Chairman)
(appointed as chairman on 29 February 2024)
Mr. Lam Wai Hung

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Hang Seng Bank Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Unit 904, 9 Floor, Wings Building
110-116 Queen'’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

Telephone: 2110 8886

Facsimile: 2110 1159

Email: admin@feholdings.com.hk

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Stock Code: 36
Board Lot Size: 3000

WEBSITE
http://www.0036.com.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: admin@feholdings.com.hk
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CORPORATE RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year Under Review"),
Far East Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “"Group”) recorded revenue of
approximately HK$9.3 million (2022: approximately HK$4.7 million),
representing an increase of approximately 97.9% as compared to
that of last year. The Group's loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$72.9 million (2022: HK$68.8 million).
The loss and total comprehensive income of the Group for the Year
Under Review was approximately HK$122.6 million (2022: HK$108.0
million), which was mainly attributable to the increase in finance
costs during the Year Under Review. The basic loss per share for the
Year Under Review was 6.69 HK cents (2022: 6.32 HK cents).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and bank balances and
deposits held at a financial institution amounting to approximately
HK$1.7 million (2022: approximately HK$0.8 million). The Group funds
its operations from a combination of internal resources, bank
borrowings, loan from a non-controlling interest and other loans.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of total debts (including
the bank borrowing, loan from a non-controlling interest and other
loans) to equity attributable to owners of the Company was 169.1%
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 139.3%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Year Under Review, there was no change to the share
capital of the Company. As at 31 December 2023, the total number
of issued ordinary shares of the Company was 1,089,118,593 (2022:
1,089,118,593) shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWLK D

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group had no significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations during the Year Under Review.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no contingent liabilities
(2022: Nil).

Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no capital commitment
(2022: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$4.7
million as at 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately HK$1.6 million),
representing 0.3% (2022: 0.1%) of the total assets of the Group.

During the Year Under Review, the Group recorded fair value gain on
held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$3.2 million (2022:
realised loss and fair value loss of approximately HK$4.8 million).

MATERIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s held-for-trading investments are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed
to equity price risk due to the fluctuation of fair value of held-for-
trading investments. Management closely monitors the market
condition of listed securities and regularly reviews the exposure to
the equity price risk on held-for-trading investments.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF THE
GROUP

There was no material acquisition nor disposal of conducted by the
Group during the Year Under Review.
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DIVIDEND

For the Year Under Review, the Board does not recommend any final
dividend (2022: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2023, the Group had 8 employees in Hong Kong
(2022: 7 employees). The Group offers its employees competitive
remuneration packages based on industry practices and
performance of individual employees. Year-end discretionary
bonuses may be granted to reward and motivate those well-
performed employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environmental protection and sustainable
development through promoting and adopting green practices in its
business activities. Initiatives within the Group include, but are not
limited to, encouraging employees to reduce paper consumption by
reuse of single-sided printed paper, to assess the necessity of
printing where appropriate and to use duplex printing.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year Under Review, the Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Property Investment

The portfolio of investment properties comprised of commercial
units located in Hong Kong with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,331.8 million (2022: approximately HK$1,418.1 million) as at 31
December 2023. The Group recorded rental income of approximately
HK$9.3 million (2022: approximately HK$4.7 million) for the Year
Under Review. Management will continue to review its portfolio of
investment properties and seek for potential acquisition and/or
disposal opportunities from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(@) Details analysis of the rental income of the Group during the  (a)
Year Under Review are as follows:

Rental income

AL ON Increase
2023 2022 in percentage
—EC-=E —E-CF B2 g
Notes HK$°000 HK$ 000 %
Location of the properties MELE iz BETFT BEFIT
9/F Wings Building, 110-116 Queen's ~ &EEFIREFAEH 110-1165 (1) 1,440 1,440 0%
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong KEBEXEIE
10/F, Wings Building, 110-116 Queen's &BHIREFAEF 110-116% @) 1,486 124 1,098%
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong KEBERE0E
Workshop No. 5 on 4/F, Fullagar BRBEBHRNELLRER %) 252 252 0%
Industrial Building, 234 Aberdeen TEREMESHI(EE
Main Road, Hong Kong
Commercial Podium (Shop) on Lower  &FBE B EH 155 HIBES (4) 6,078 2,880 111%
Ground Floor, Upper Ground Floor, ~ #TEE - #TSE - —1g -
First Floor, Second Floor, Third Floor =12~ =2 E£F 4 (B4) -
and Offices and Flat Roof on Fourth W2 HAZER KA
Floor of Silver Fortune Plaza, 1
Wellington Street, Hong Kong

Notes: MaE -

(1) The property is currently divided into five rental units and a W) aZ%%E ﬁﬁﬁflfﬂh%h&*1@-§
conference room. The conference room is shared among tenants of RE - SHREHVEAPHE - RAHK
the property. At the date of this report, four out of the five rental ERE ZMERERE S EF HE
units of the property are leased to four tenants with their leases ﬁ%ﬂ% EI%%E)E' RO a1l v
expiration dates in April 2024, October 2024, July 2025 and April 2024 FMOMA -ZT-_ME+H- = 3 —hHEF
respectively. Management will seek for renewal with these tenants tARZE-_MFMNARER  BEEH
upon expiration of the leases. REHERESKEZERFEL -

(2  The whole floor of this property is leased to a tenant with its lease 2 ZYEZEEHEBEFTRAFE HOR

“E-REAAREW - HEBAREE
FEEMTIEAREEFEANZHE

expiration date on September 2025. Increase in rental income during
the Year Under Review is mainly due to the whole period rental

during the Year Under Review.

(3) The property is an industrial unit leased to a tenant with its lease

expiration date on December 2024.

(4) The property is a commercial podium comprised of six floors from
Lower Ground Floor to the Fourth Floor. The fourth floor of this
property which was previously leased to a tenant with its lease
expiration date in August 2025 and this tenant failed to pay rent
during the Year Under Review. The Group had taken legal

action,against this tenant and the lease was terminated by then.

During the Year Under Review, the Upper Ground Floor, the Second
Floor and the Third Floor have been leased to three tenants with
their leases expiration dates in January 2026, August 2026 and

January 2026 respectively.

As at the date of this report, the Group entered an offer to lease
agreement with a potential tenant to lease the Lower Ground Floor

with its lease expiration date in March 2027.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(b)  Management reviews its investment properties and tenants  (b)
portfolio from time to time with aims to generate stable income &
to the Group and for capital appreciation. Management will
diversify its tenant mix, if necessary, in order to minimize the
financial impact to the Group. In addition, the Group will seek
to optimize the composition of the property portfolio based on
the outlook of the property market and expand the property
portfolio with suitable additional investment properties. The
Group will also investigate with reference to the rate of returns

and market price to identify for any potential disposals.

Investment in Securities

During the Year Under Review, the Group recorded fair value gain on
held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$3.2 million (2022:
realised loss and fair value loss of approximately HK$4.8 million).

Details of the movement of the held-for-trading investments during

the Year Under Review were listed as follows:

31 December 2022

(nFE=

HERE

FE o WIN

BEEEITHRSEARENELEAFE
EER/AEETREERARER
BE -EEERESTRAEFES
C NBERADE AN E BB
AREBERRIEYEN 5 A
SSREEMFESBR  LASED
BIMREMERBAYMEMLS - AEET
K2ELREREMELTHE  UPE
EBEELESERE -

REBEFE AEESESEHEFEEREZA
1B Y g 4948 #63,200,0007T (ZF = — 4 -

B B 1E M A THEE B A8 4,800,0007T) °

Disposal during the year

REREFEHEEERENS

HEMT

31 December 2023

—E--H+=ZA=+—8 FREE —E-=H+=ZA=+—8
Stock No. of Fair value No. of Fair value No. of Fair value
Code Stock Name shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
AFHE AFE AFE
RO BROBH ROEA BT T R&OHAE BETT R&OEHAE BT T
1557 K.H. GP HLDGS 6,000,000 1,560 - - 6,000,000 4,740
&I T 5= B2 A
307 UP ENERGY DEV (note) 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000 -
BikeeRERE (M)
404 HSIN CHONG GP (note) 35,000,000 - - - 35,000,000 -
FTESBEER (M)
587 HUA HAN HEALTH (note) 26,272,000 - - - 26,272,000 -
ERRE (M)
705 DINGHE MINING (note) 222,000,000 - - - 222,000,000 -
SMEE (M)
1106 MING LAM HLDGS (note) 140,000,000 - - - 140,000,000 -
s IR (P 5E)
1,560 - 4,740

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2023



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEWLK D

As at 31 December 2023, the held-for-trading investments amounted
to approximately HK$4.7 million (2022: approximately HK$1.6 million).
This value represented an investment portfolio comprising 1 (2022: 1)
equity securities that are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Group does not hold any investment accounted for five per cent
or more of the Group's total asset at the end of the reporting period.

Note: These equity securities were delisted from the Stock Exchange.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, with the full reopening of the border with the Chinese
Mainland and the economies of the nearby areas, it will have a
positive impact to the Group’s property investment. It was also
expected that the Group’s rental income will be increased in 2024
and the fair value of investment properties and held-for-trading
investments will be increased as the city returns to normalcy. The
Group is devoted to increasing the occupancy rate of the properties
and looking for potential acquisition/disposal of properties to
generate stable income and capital appreciation from the properties.
In view of the above, management will closely monitor the
investment portfolio and capture opportunities in a prudent manner
and balance investment risks of the Group.

Cheung Sze Ming
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EE/EN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming

Mr. Cheung, aged 54, joined the Group in February 2023 as an
executive Director, the chief financial officer, the company secretary
and was appointed as the chairman of the investment committee of
the Company. Mr. Cheung has over 30 years of working experience
from an international audit firm and public listed companies. Mr.
Cheung is currently an executive director, the company secretary
and the chief financial officer of Affluent Partners Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1466) since April 2018, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, an independent non-executive director of Ocean Line Port
Development Limited (stock code: 8502) since November 2020, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and an
independent non-executive director of Great Wall Terroir Holdings
Limited (stock code: 524) since March 2021 and Yuk Wing Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1536) since January 2024, which are
both listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cheung holds a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He had spent
about 8 years in an international audit firm and was an audit
manager before he left the firm. Thereafter, Mr. Cheung has held
different senior positions in various public listed companies. He was
an executive director and chief financial officer of Dingyi Group
Investment Limited (stock code: 508), from October 2011 to March
2018, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhu Weiwen

Mr. Zhu, aged 46, joined the Group in March 2023 as an executive
Director and was re-designated as non-executive director in
February 2024. Mr. Zhu has over 10 years of working experience in
managerial positions from companies in the Mainland China and
Australia in the areas of technology, dairy production and mining.
Mr. Zhu is currently an executive director and a general manager of
Xiamen Oriental Hong Yu Technology Company Limited* (& P9 77
o7 F B A BR A &) since May 2004, an executive director and a
general manager of Ganzhou Shifeng Mining Company Limited* (%5
MiEZELEEARSTRQF) since July 2011, and an executive
director and a general manager of Xiamen Zhengrong Investment
Company Limited* (/& F91E &% & AR 2 &) since August 2012. He
also had been the chairman of Australia Deloraine Dairy Pty Ltd from
January 2016 to April 2019. (*The English translation of the Chinese
names are for identification purpose only.)

1 0 FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Annual Report 2023
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick

Mr. Mak, aged 59, joined the Group in July 2017 and was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of each of the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Mak is a
registered solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong and Managing
Partner of Patrick Mak & Tse, Solicitors. Mr. Mak has over 20 years’
legal experience in the legal field. He was awarded the Common
Professional Examination Certificate in Laws by the University of
Hong Kong in 1995 and was awarded his Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws (P.C.LL) by the University of Hong Kong in 1998.

Mr. Mak is currently an independent non-executive director of
Macau Legend Development Limited (stock code: 1680), the
securities of this company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Mak was an independent non-executive director of Fresh
Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1175)
("Fresh Express”) from July 2013 to December 2021, the securities of
Fresh Express were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and delisted on 9 February 2023.

Mr. Lam Wai Hung

Mr. Lam, aged 44, joined the Group in September 2022 and was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of audit committee and a member of each of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.
Lam holds a Bachelor of Accounting and Finance Degree from Leeds
Metropolitan University and is a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He had been working in various
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, and was responsible for
works related to financial management, corporate finance, merger
and acquisition, investor relationship and corporate governance.

Mr. Lam is currently an executive director of NOVA Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1360) whose securities are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam is currently an independent
non-executive director of Kin Shing Holdings Limited (stock code:
1630) whose securities are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive
director of Smart City Development Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Deson Construction International Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8268) whose securities are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lam was an independent non-executive director of Jimu Group
Limited (stock code: 8187) for the period from 25 May 2021 to 14
January 2022 whose securities are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard

Mr. Lam, aged 65, joined the Group in November 2023 and was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the remuneration committee and a member of each of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Lam is a
fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and was admitted to the Master Degree of Business Administration in
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2006. Mr. Lam spent over ten
years in PricewaterhouseCoopers, an international accounting firm and
promoted to a senior audit manager, and is equipped with extensive
experience in accountancy, taxation and corporate finance.

Mr. Lam was the deputy chairman and chief executive officer of
EverChina Int'l Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 202), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from the
period from June 2009 to October 2023 and is now a senior
consultant of EverChina Int'l Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Lam is
currently an independent non-executive director of Lajin
Entertainment Network Group Limited (stock code: 8172), whose
shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of China Water Industry Group
Limited (stock code: 1129) and Legend Strategy International
Holdings Group Company Limited (stock code: 1355), whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam held senior positions in a number of listed companies in
Hong Kong, including Sun Hung Kai & Co., Limited, Kingsway SW
Asset Management Limited and U-Cyber Technology Holdings
Limited. Besides, Mr. Lam was appointed as either an independent
non-executive director or an executive director in various companies
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
during the period from 2001 to 2014, including Eagle Legend Asia
Limited, Kai Yuan Holdings Limited and China Pipe Group Limited.

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRESE

The Directors present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes
to the Group’s principal activities during the current year. Further
discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can
be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 4 to 9 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this
Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the Group's
consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 134.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 135 of this
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the investment properties and property, plant and
equipment held by the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set out in
notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. Particulars of the properties and property interests of
the Group are set out on page 136 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) as at 31 December 2023 comprised
the retained profits of approximately HK$87,925,000 (2022:
HK$106,957,000).
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
(2022: Nil).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 12 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the Group's business during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (appointed on 17 February 2023)
Mr. Eric Todd (resigned on 29 February 2024)
Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho (resigned on 17 February 2023)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhu Weiwen (appointed as Director on 20 March 2023 and
re-designated on 29 February 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick

Mr. Lam Wai Hung

Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard (appointed on 17 November 2023)

Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny (resigned on 19 June 2023)

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2023
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Pursuant to articles 73 and 74 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”) and code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick shall retire by rotation from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the “"AGM"). He, being eligible, has offered himself for re-election as
Directors at the AGM.

Pursuant to Articles 78 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lam
Cheung Shing, Richard, who was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 19 June 2023 to fill the casual
vacancy occasioned by the resignation of Mr. Wong Kui Shing,
Danny, shall hold office until the AGM and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the AGM.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Cheung Sze
Ming is also director in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Other
director of the Company's subsidiaries during the year and up to the
date of this report was:

Class Success Limited

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming has entered into a service agreement with the
Company in relation to his appointment as the chief financial officer,
company secretary and authorised representative of the Company.
He has no fixed term of service and such appointment may be
terminated in accordance with its terms.

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick, Mr. Lam Wai Hung, Mr. Zhu Weiwen and
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard were appointed to the Board
pursuant to their respective letters of appointment, for a term of one
year, and such appointment may be terminated in accordance with
its terms.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who is proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or chief executives of
the Company and their associates had any interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap.571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) that was required to be recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS' AND
OFFICERS' LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the provisions of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), every
Director or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all loss and liabilities which he/
she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such
Article shall only have effect in so far as its provisions are not
avoided by the Companies Ordinance. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Company during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year Under Review.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND/OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO discloses no person as
having a notifiable interest or short position in the share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2023.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's five largest and the Group's largest customer accounted
for approximately 86% and 32% of the total revenue for the Year
Under Review, respectively.

The Group’s five largest and the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for approximately 77% and 33% of the total rental operating cost for
the Year Under Review, respectively.

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a
Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s number of issued shares)
have an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers or
customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
"Corporate Governance Report” on pages 49 to 61 of this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established by the Board with written terms of reference which are
consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant section of the
CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee met
two times to consider the financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee is principally responsible for reviewing with the
management of the Company the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, risk
management and internal control system, and financial reporting
matters including the review of the consolidated financial
statements. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Lam Wai Hung (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Mak Ka Wing,
Patrick and Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard.

The final results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee which is of the opinion
that the preparation of such results was in compliance with the
relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued
shares during the year and up to the latest practicable date of this
annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 13 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Company’s remuneration committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 were audited by BDO Limited who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Board, our
management and to all our staff for their dedicated efforts during
this year, as well as to our customers, suppliers, business partners
and Shareholders for their continuous and full support to our Group.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Sze Ming
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HERELABESE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Far East Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) are pleased to
present its 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
Report (the “Report”), which outlines the Group’s management
approaches, measures and performance on ESG related issues.

Reporting Standard

The Report has been prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide”), which is the
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Main Board of SEHK. A content index is provided at the end of the
Report for the ease of reference.

The Report adheres to the following four reporting principles:

Reporting
Principles

s R Al
Materiality

Definition
B

The ESG issues determined by the Group are
sufficiently important to stakeholders that they
should be reported.

BARARES
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The Group’s Application
rEENER

This Report emphasises the material ESG
issues as identified and assessed by the
board of directors (the “Board”). These are
issues that are of most importance to the
Group's business and reflect our significant
environmental and social impacts.
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Quantitative

Key performance indicators (“KPIs”) and their
data should be measurable and comparable
where appropriate, enabling evaluation of the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management
systems.

The Report contains KPIs that are measured
and disclosed guantitatively whenever
applicable. An external professional
consultant is appointed to assess the
performance with reference to applicable
standards and guidelines.
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CHERERRES

Reporting
Principles

Definition

] R A B=

The Group'’s Application
rEENER

Balance The report should provide an unbiased picture | The Report provides an unbiased narrative
of ESG performance, allowing stakeholders to | for stakeholders to objectively evaluate the
objectively evaluate the Group’'s ESG | Group's ESG performance.
performance.

1 BREEETRTIAELEREREE HLERER ERFHERENMRE T EO R
=B BROEFEMTRAEENERE 1t E%RHHZKEIE’J%&% gk a/ui'fzfﬁ
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Consistency Statistical methodologies should be consistent | Unless otherwise stated, the reporting
and historical data should be provided where | scope and methodology are consistent with
feasible to allow for meaningful comparisons of | the previous reports to allow meaningful
ESG performance over time. comparison. Changes are provided with

explanations or remarks. Historical data are
disclosed where feasible.
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Reporting Boundary and Period

In line with the previous reports, this Report covers the operation of
the Group's registered office in Hong Kong, including the business
segments of property investment and securities investment, which
contributes 100% of the revenue of the Group. Unless otherwise
stated, information disclosed in the Report applies to the financial
year for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the
“Reporting Period").

Approval and Publication
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The Report has been prepared based on the adopted policies, official
documents and data records of the Group. The Report has been
reviewed and approved by the Board on 26 March 2024. Both English
and Chinese versions of the Report are available on the Group's
website and the HKEXnews website.
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Your Comments

The Group believes opinions from stakeholders are important to
assist management to enhance the Group’s work and approach
related to ESG. Details of the communication channels are as follows:

Address:  Unit 904, 9/F, Wings Building, 110-116 Queen’s Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong

Email: admin@feholdings.com.hk

Fax: (852) 2110 1159

STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

Technological development, climate change, changes in consumer
behaviour and changes in national policies continue to have an
impact worldwide. These factors shape the landscape in which
businesses operate and create both challenges and opportunities.

Under the wave of low-carbon economy transition, it is vital for
businesses to not only adapt but also to thrive amidst these changes.
The Board of the Group plays a crucial role in overseeing and guiding
sustainability, climate change and risk management across the
organisation.

To ensure business continuity and protect the interests of
stakeholders, the Board sets the tone for responsible and sustainable
business practices. This includes implementing robust risk
management frameworks, fostering a culture of accountability, and
promoting transparency in reporting.

We seek to manage emissions and resource utilisation to minimise
the adverse environmental impacts of our business operations.
Recognising the importance of climate change and the need for
responses, we intend to undertake climate risk analysis and develop
strategies to mitigate risks. This will enable us to effectively address
the challenges presented by climate change.

Moving forward, the Group will consistently incorporate sustainable
development principles into our decision-making, business strategies
and daily operations, enhancing our overall sustainability
performance. We will also foster communication with stakeholders
to achieve shared successes and move towards a sustainable
economy.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Sze Ming
Executive Director
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OUR APPROACH TO ESG

Governance and Risk Management

The Group recognises the importance of having robust corporate
governance in leading it to achieve sustainability and business
success. The Board undertakes the overall responsibility for
overseeing and driving the overall direction of the Group’s ESG and
climate-related issues, including risks, strategy, targets, policies,
practices and performance. Works associated with ESG are shared
among the Board and two dedicated full time staff members. To
ensure the direction aligns the expectations of its stakeholders and
business objectives, the Board regularly reviews the Group’s ESG
strategy and progress of achieving related goals. Meetings are held
at least annually to discuss ESG related issues.

Exg

The Board

BMWERE  HEREATEH
BEaRABRER
AERRARENCEEAYERTHES
EREBRINEBE BEFE2EEEE
BREHAEERS HEREBURRIRE
FREEOEESR  SEAR KK B

BOBE BHRERE -ERE HERE
RN T EHEFE N _REEERET
D RERTANAESNDENMERE

BER EFEETHRILAEERNERE &
EREAEMEEKBAHEBEENER -TF
%jzzyigﬁgfj'*//\a J’/\DTEFEI& ?_IJ:

ERERMEBEERE -

BZEZESg HE AR
Audit Committee Dedicated personnel
o Assist the Board in supervising the Group’s risk o Develop and implement ESG policies and

management and internal control system

o BHESEERAEENRREERANBEZRR

o Identify and assess significant risks, including ESG and
climate-related risks .

. FHR R ERER - BIERE A RERARRMER o
sl =0
o Make recommendations on risk mitigation strategies o

o BREREME IR R

The Group's business strategies are developed and implemented by
taking account of risks that may affect its business. With the support
of the Audit Committee, the Board is responsible for supervising the
Group's risk management and internal control system and ensuring
its effectiveness. The Audit Committee identifies and assesses the
significance, likelihood and consequences of risks, including ESG and
climate-related risks, relevant to the Company. An Internal Control
Policies and Procedures Manual (the “IC Manual”) provides guidance
on the relevant procedures and practices.

procedures

FIE REBIRE 8 RER/IEKLIEF
Gather data and evaluate performance
WEBH K ERI

Propose enhancements to manage ESG and
climate related risks and opportunities
RIEBGEERIAERIRE 8 RER/UR
R A B L B e i

AEENEBRBEHEEBARTEERD
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T EZgRAERAKRENEREENRA
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BEMEREBR AMEERRELEFFM A
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Compliance Management EHREE

The Group adheres to high-level standard and is committed to  ANEBEF SEE - TR HETHE @B E
complying with all applicable laws and regulations. Any non- @A - ER T AR B RG A EEHEE
compliance may result in fines, penalties, enforcement actions from &%T%iﬁ’rm%f"%ﬁ’]@?ﬁ BEE]  $EITE
regulators or other stakeholders or other consequences that may EHASENEBEERBEENTE

pose an impact on the Group's business operations and reputation.
The Group strives to minimise its exposure to regulatory risk by
ensuring compliance within its operations. A mandatory compliance
program and monitoring system are established and outlined in the
IC Manual for which our Directors and employees are required to
observe. During the Reporting Period, there was no recorded
incidence of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
Below is a list of laws and regulations with the Group’s compliance

status.

Aspects
[

Laws and Regulations that have a
Significant Impact on the Group

HEAEEEREALENEERER

E’JEWM%% AREEBNEBEREE
M EE R
E&ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂ/\%ﬁ AEIMEEARR
&
Iﬂﬂﬁ* i&*ﬁf’ﬁxifi&&%ﬁﬁﬁ%#

ER
B = &K - ABEPESIE F I E
BEER
o ¥R E HAM -
AR

BTEBERESR

compliance Status
EREBER

Emissions o Air Pollution Control Ordinance Not aware of any non-compliance
o Waste Disposal Ordinance
P o RSB HED WRBREMAESRIER

o ERVRERD

Employment and Labour
Standards

o Employment Ordinance
o Minimum Wage Ordinance

e Employees’ Compensation Ordinance

Not aware of any non-compliance

1B 1% & 85 T2

o EBIEA
o  KEIEKA
s  REEWEGRM

WEZBREFMTERBER

Health and Safety

o Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance

o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance

Not aware of any non-compliance

ez

o BEREREFEED
s  REEFEEKRM

W EEREATEHRIBEN

Product Responsibility

o Copyright Ordinance

o Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

Not aware of any non-compliance

EmAE

o hRIEMRD
o EAER (LR &H

W EEREATEHRIEN

Anti-corruption

o Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

J Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-

Terrorist Financing Ordinance

Not aware of any non-compliance
or any concluded legal cases
against the Group or its employees

o Dhi-REEE GBI
o HTERE

k2D FESEEGD

0 BT (& RS B
1852 07 B 0 MR EHEER
f
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

Stakeholder engagement is considered as a core part of the Group's
ESG strategy. Understanding and addressing stakeholders’
expectations and concerns enables the Group to keep ahead of the
latest ESG trends. The Group identifies its key stakeholders by
considering individuals who have a significant influence on the
Group's business operations, as well as those who would be
substantially impacted by its activities, such as the management,
employees, shareholders and investors, regulators, tenants, business
partners and the community.

During the Report Period, the Group maintained regularly
communication with stakeholders through a variety of channels,
such as general meetings, interviews, surveys, and other daily
activities. To identify and prioritise ESG issues that are important to
the Group, an independent consultant has been appointed to
conduct a materiality assessment through a three-step approach.

K ESHEREERMRTMGE

RO E2EFERAAEERE HERER
REEMZLED » TR ELBEFHENRHE
LEITEER  BEOAREERRAHRE
HERERBS AEBEBEEUAKE
EBEEREARFENNALTURZETH
BARVENAT (MEEE - RBE  RERE
BE EERE EP EBBHERMER)E
PEEERHNE -

REEHY AEBBBREAY - HH
AEREAREDESBEBRBHER
HESER - ARHAEENEBEEN
BOE MR REAREL B E SR
AREEEEBLENEB= S HHETE
TR -

1 Identification e The Group identified 20 relevant ESG issues, referencing the ESG Guide, reporting
trends, and industry peers.

1 Rl o AKEZERE HERERIES  WEBBRITERIT - #5IH20ERARIRE -
HERERERE -

2 Prioritisation e The Group invited both internal and external stakeholders to participate in an online

survey. The purpose of this survey was to rate the materiality of the ESG issues.

e Views regarding how issues affect the Group’s enterprise value, as well as the Group’s
impact on the economy, environment, and society, were collected from the Board
members and Middle Management. External stakeholder, a professional body, were
invited to provide views on the Group’s impact on the economy, environment, and
society. All views are evaluated to determine the overall materiality of each issue.

e A materiality matrix was created along with a list of prioritised issues.
2 EBEEEF o AEFEBFEANARIINBFMNELHEFLAS - HASHENIZTHER Lk

REmENERN -

s AEFEXERTARAEEERFHENZENAZEARELEXEE URAKEY
RE RERMENTENER -BENBHNE (EXRB) AKEHLE R
BEHENPEREER - MABRHSKEN L UHEERZENEREEN -

o BUSBEMEEIAREBLRBIR-

3 Validation e The Board reviewed the results of the materiality assessment.
3 BE s EEEEHEIEMTENG

ERZREBRERAE
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7 out of 20 ESG issues were considered as material issues of the FE20HBIE HEeREREET  HP7(E
Group. FEEWRAREBRNEEREE -

Issue (in descending order of materiality) i Materiality

RE(REEMEEFHES) Z£4 BEEM
10 Training and Development

B3 BB R

11 Occupational Health and Safety

BEREELTD
12 Labour Standards
25 T AR
14 Privacy and Data Security . Material
LERBEZ S BEE
18 Business Ethics
BE3EE
19 Risk Management
[ Bex i 38
20 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
REHHBERE
3 Waste
BEZEY)
4 Energy
§EIR
8 Employment Practices
EE®HE
9 Diversity and Equal Opportunity 5 Material
AR TSRS B2

13 Product and Service Quality and Safety
EmkREanEEe s

17 Community Engagement and Investment
HE2EREE

16 Responsible Supply Chain Management
BEANHEREER

5 Water

FA7K

7 Climate Change and Resilience
Rz B Ko 1

15 Responsible Marketing

BEANEH 3 Monitored
1 Air Emissions REE
JBE R RL

2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
AERBYEIN

6 Materials

mEt
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Material Issues Section

EERE E=4:0]

19 Risk Management OUR APPROACH TO ESG — Governance and Risk Management
[ Bex B 38 BMWIRER - g REBHH — BB KERERE

10 Training and Development CARING FOR EMPLOYEES — Training and Development
o) B B BEREE —BJIEERE

11 Occupational Health and Safety CARING FOR EMPLOYEES — Health, Safety and Well-being
BEEEEyy BEREE —@F 22 REd

12 Labour Standards CARING FOR EMPLOYEES — Employee Management
25 T AR HMEEE —(BEEE

18 Business Ethics UPHOLDING ETHICAL OPERATIONS — Anti-corruption
[BE 3= RTEEEE —RES

14 Privacy and Data Security UPHOLDING ETHICAL OPERATIONS — Service Responsibilities
LERBEZE BRrEELE —REEMT

20 Protection of Intellectual Property UPHOLDING ETHICAL OPERATIONS — Service Responsibilities
Rights
REMBERE RrEREE—REEE

EREREBRERAT 27
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MANAGING ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT RIBEEB
The Group is fully aware of the importance of achieving AEBEZFANERIRBAFELENEEM -
environmental sustainability. In response to global environmental AREH2HIREHE  AEECH T HIRE

BREEER MO RAEEBOAFHEER
E;T’—:HIJ“M AEERLER S EEF
B RELRER - AKREMRAERNGE
A-ZERAERRRERYEEREER
frigsl -

challenges, the Group has set its environmental targets and
measures that strive to enhance the sustainability in its operations
and combat climate change. The Group is also determined to
conserve and optimise the use of energy, water, and other natural
resources in our daily operations. The Green Office Policy provides
guidance on emissions and resources management.

Measures

Aspects

=4 = #ie

Emissions The Group is committed to reduce Implement energy efficiency-related measures;
greenhouse gas (“GHG") and air Adopt a fully electric vehicle fleet.
emissions through the adoption of
appropriate measures.
23587 REBRNFEBHEIGEE B MR B IR AB R HE I
AERE(DRERE ) RERYEN - KAZEEHEH -

Wastes reduction

The Group is committed to
continuously reducing the generation
of waste across the operations and
ensuring waste is properly managed
through the adoption of appropriate
measures.

Implement an office “swap closet” for exchanging
office supplies, particularly during the transition
between former and new employees;

Share edible leftover food and beverages for
employee or people in need following meetings or
events;

Minimise disposables and encourage the use of
biodegradable and reusable products, including
dining items;

Go digital to reduce paper waste;

Recycle all the hazardous waste and paper waste
generated.

R

$E@ﬁﬂ%ﬁgﬁ¢wx$éi
BIEEZEY) - X0 F B EUE B e
ﬁ@%%%ﬂyméﬁo

REMNE[RBME]  ARBBAERR  LHE
EEHIJE,\@&i%ﬂEAE’]H}%Fﬁ
REBLEHER RAEFTENEEIALHIER
FREV Al R Roan K AREL
BERIER—RMER SR BER A LR
LAIBRERNER BEAEDS
EREIE TR DR
CURFIEEENBE EERZY RER -
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Aspects

=41

Energy efficiency

The Group strives to reduce the
consumption of energy by

implementing appropriate measures.

Measures

it

e Enable eco-friendly options setting as default on all
copiers, printers and other electronic equipment;

e Enable the time control of air conditioner to
automatically switch off after official hours;

e Enable the time control of copiers and printers to
automatically switch off after official hours or enter
energy saving modes after long periods of
inactivity;

e Purchase appliances with Grade 1 energy labels or
“Recognition Type” energy label upon replacement
of old appliances.

REBRNBBEREEHERKD
ﬁb/ﬁ/f:] %%

o BAAR m% THMEENEFRERRRE
RRRE

o fEZE uﬂE’JHﬁ'ﬁ? NN EFE 1R B BRI

o ERZENHE R AT ENHE B0 B 4R I FE Y A RS R 12 B B
FAR S E R R AMEBREASRELN

s HEFMEERNEETA —MNERFHN RN
Hz/ﬁﬁ%ﬁm%m °

Water efficiency

The Group is committed to
minimising water consumption and
ensuring fresh water is being
consumed in a sustainable manner.

e Avoid the use of bottled water in the office and
during meetings and encourage employees to use
the tap water;

e Install water tap flow controllers to reduce water
consumption;

e Monitor the data and arrange investigations and
maintenance promptly.

Rk

RE BB D B R EERIA R £
B FORFAK -

o EMAENGHMEEREMMENK  LEEIE
BERBRK:

o ZEIKEBREBEFIZHIRDAKE

o ERYBUWRKLHFAER#E-

BRERBEBRERD T
T ZFFR 29



30

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HAREAREE

Climate Change

Recognising the risks and opportunities that climate change presents
to financial markets, the Group has established a climate change
policy and incorporated climate change considerations in its
decision-making process to manage its climate-related issues.

The policy addresses climate change with four major approaches,
including mitigation, adaptation, resilience and disclosure. Apart
from evaluating and regularly reviewing its exposure to climate
related-risks for its properties and investment, the Group will work
with suppliers, property managers and tenants to establish
contingency plans for climate-related events.

The Group will continue to review its approaches to identifying and
managing climate related risks that are significant to the Group,
thereby strengthening its climate resiliency and business
sustainability.

Emissions

The Group continues to commission a professional consultant in
conducting carbon assessment and quantify the GHG emissions of
its operations. The GHG emissions calculations were carried out in
accordance with the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong", compiled by the
Environmental Protection Department and Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department of Hong Kong SAR government.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's total GHG emission,
including scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions, decreased to 6.9 tonnes CO.€,
representing a 9% decrease compared with the previous year. The
major contribution comes from indirect emission of its electricity
usage. The Group's direct emission of air pollutants is recorded 0,
which is achieved by adopting electric vehicle.

Waste

The Group strives to reduce the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste through the prevention, reduction, recycling and
reuse of materials. During the Reporting Period, the Group generated
0.004 tonnes of non-hazardous waste, including office waste and
paper waste, and did not produce any hazardous waste. Office
waste was collected by the property management and directed to
the landfill, while paper waste was collected for recycling.
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Energy

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed a total of 9.8 MWh
of energy, representing a 3% decrease compared with the previous
year.

Water

The Group sources potable water from municipal supplies and has
no issues regarding water sourcing. During the Reporting Period, the
Group consumed 34 cubic metres of water.

Paper
During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed 0.04 tonnes of
paper for office use.

Given its business nature, the Group only consumes limited
resources and generates minimal emissions and waste in its
operations, thereby, does not result in significant impact on the
environment and natural resources. Despite that, the Group
recognises its investment strategy could make an impact on driving
sustainability. The Group will further explore the possibility of
embedding ESG considerations into its investment strategy, which
could create long-term values to both the shareholders and the
society as a whole.

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that enhancing its operational performance lies
in employee satisfaction. To achieve mutual development and
growth with employees, the Group attracts and retains talents
through offering a safe, harmonious and inclusive workplace,
competitive remuneration packages and benefits.

Employee Management

All employment related policies and arrangements, including
recruitment and promotion, compensation and dismissal, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other welfare, are guided and managed by the Employee
Handbook and individual employees’ contract.

Recruitment, promotion and dismissal

All candidates and employees are evaluated based on objective
criteria, such as their competencies, gualifications, experience and
skills. A standard resignation and termination procedures is in place
to protect the benefits of employer and employees who wish to
terminate or resign.
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Compensation and benefits

Employee compensation, which includes a base salary and an
incentive bonus, is determined by the employee’s performance,
contribution, market trend, and the overall result of the Group.
Employees are entitled to paid annual leaves and sick leaves,
bereavement/compassionate leaves, marriage and maternity leaves.
Medical and insurance coverage, Mandatory Provident Fund, and
other statutory benefits are provided.

Diversity, equal opportunity and anti-discrimination
Employees are encouraged each other with dignity. Recruitment,
compensation and other employment practices are based on the
competencies, qualifications, experience and skills of candidates or
employees, irrespective of their race, religion, gender, age,
nationality, disability or other forms of discriminations.

Labour standards

All forms of child and forced labour are strictly prohibited within the
Group. Identification and reference checks are arranged for
candidates before hiring to avoid the misuse of child labour, while
employment relationships are governed by individual contracts.

If any cases of breaching labour rights are discovered, the Group will
immediately terminate the misbehaviour and take appropriate
remedial actions, such as protecting the victim, conducting review
and introducing appropriate corrective measures and arrangements.

Communication and grievance system

An open door policy is adopted to encourage communication among
all employees without management hierarchies. Employees can
report any misbehaviours to the management or the human
resources department. Reported incident will be confidentially
investigated, and misbehaviours are subject to disciplinary actions
up to and including termination.

Health, Safety and Well-being

Safeguarding employees’ health and safety and promoting their well-
being is one of the Group’s priorities. A set of policies and guidelines
are implemented to mitigate and monitor occupational risks,
covering practices and guidance on pandemic outbreaks, fires,
accidents, emergencies, typhoons, and rainstorms. To promote
health and safety awareness, relevant office notices are displayed in
office and employees are encouraged to choose vegetarian meals as
a healthier choice during the Group's catering events.
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To maintain workplace safety, the Group continues to operate in line
with the guides issued by health authorities to minimise infection in
its offices while COVID-19 spreads in the community. Facemasks and
hand sanitisers are distributed to employees to safeguard their
health, while leaflets and posters are displayed in the office to
promote anti-pandemic measures.

During the Reporting Period, there were no cases of work-related
injuries. There were no cases of work-related fatalities in the past
three years including the Reporting Period.

Training and Development

The Group advocates professional development of its employees for
maintaining personal and corporate competitiveness, amid the fast
changing environment. The Employee Handbook outlines the Group’s
approach to training and development. The Group provides various
training programmes and activities that meet employees’ and
operational needs. To encourage employees to attend external
training and obtain professional recognition, early leave for training
and examination leave are offered. A mentoring program is available
for newcomers, which enables them to adapt to the business and
workplace. The mentor will help their mentee to reach their true
potential through extensive guidance and support.

To support the development of the Group’s employees, annual
performance reviews are arranged with employees to identify and
discuss development goals and opportunities. Employees will also be
recommended to receive regular updates on the rules and
regulations relevant to the Group.

During the Reporting Period, all employees of the Group received
training, with an average of 17.5 training hours per employee.

UPHOLDING ETHICAL OPERATIONS

The Group considers business integrity to be the cornerstone of its
growth and sustainability in the long run. The Group's activities,
including service responsibility, anti-corruption and supply chain
management, are imbued with responsible practices.

Anti-corruption

The Group is dedicated to operate with business integrity and
transparency, and has zero tolerance towards all forms of corruption,
including bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering. To raise
awareness against corruption and understanding of relevant
legislations, practices of preventing and reporting potentially
fraudulent activities are covered in the IC Manual and the Employee
Handbook.
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All employees are required to comply with relevant laws and
regulations. An Investment Committee is set up to review and
approve investments that might have a significant financial impact
on the Group. If there is a potential conflict of interest, the
investment or other business dealing in consideration should be
halted, and such potential should be reported to the Board for
appropriate resolution.

Employees are forbidden to offer or accept benefits related to the
affairs or business of the Group. They are advised to report
guestionable and improper acts or misconduct through the Group'’s
whistle-blowing mechanism. The identity of whistleblowers will be
protected, and all reported incidents are handled confidentially.

During the Reporting Period, all Board members and middle
management were provided with online material for anti-corruption
training, with an average of 1 training hour per Board member and
middle management.

Service Responsibilities

To advance the management of relationship with the tenants, the
Group has established property management and rental policies and
procedures in 2021. These policies and procedures cover the tenant
screening process, tenant move-ins and move-outs, and the
execution and conclusion of lease agreements, which aid in raising
service quality standards, outlining clear responsibilities, and
facilitating communications between the parties.

The Group places a high priority on safeguarding stakeholders'
confidential information throughout its business operations. Privacy
and confidentiality procedures are outlined in the IC Manual. Data
protection measures are implemented to monitor the compliance
that falls under the purview of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), who
also serves in the capacity of Privacy and Confidentiality Leader
(PCL). PCL is responsible for reviewing pertinent laws, developing
and maintaining the necessary facilities, and training personnel. All
employees must sign confidentiality agreements to ensure the
acknowledgement of such obligations to protect information and
prevent misuse of personal or confidential data.

The Employee Handbook specifies how employees should respect
intellectual properties. All work created by the employees during
their employment belongs solely and exclusively to the Group.
Employees must also create their original works to avoid violating
the rights of others. Before collaborating with any co-creators,
employees must provide the Group with written notice and acquire
their permission in writing. Employees are reminded that using,
creating, or obtaining unauthorised copies of software is prohibited
and will result in disciplinary actions.
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The Group will continue to review its operational needs, together
with the latest requirements and stakeholders’ expectations, to
develop or update its policies regarding its services rendered.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to governing the environmental and social
risks throughout its supply chain. To ensure an open and equitable
procurement process, a series of criteria is established for reference
in considering and selecting suppliers. These criteria include the
quality and safety of product and service, price, reputation, and the
environmental performance and social responsibility of suppliers.
The Group gives priority to suppliers with durable and sustainable
products, thereby promoting green purchasing practices. Examples
include energy-efficient office appliances and products made with
recyclable materials and less packaging.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to obtain
professional services and office supplies from 28 Hong Kong
suppliers, including 19 service providers and 9 hardware providers.
All of them went through the selection process.

In line with the global sustainable trend, the Group plans to
strengthen its capability of managing supply chain-related risks to
mitigate the negative impacts of procurement that may pose to the
environment and society.

GIVE BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

As a member of the local community, the Group upholds the ideals
of taking from society, giving back to society, and strives to fulfill its
social responsibility. The Group pays close attention to the
community needs and engages itself in volunteer activities in various
fields, particularly social welfare.

During the Reporting Period, our employees participated in
community activities, such as visits to senior citizens organised by
The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council and Power of Love, as
well as cattle feeding activity organised by Hong Kong Cattle Ranger,
contributing to 63 volunteer hours.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to adhere to being a
responsible corporate citizen, refine the relevant policy and explore
community investment opportunities that align the needs of the
community and its business objectives.
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SUMMARY OF KPIS BARENEEHE
Environmental Performance RIBXRR
(0]1E:T11114;
B2E
Environmental KPIs 2022
REBRENER z —E_C
A1.1 Air emissions
RN
Nitrogen oxides (NO k
e o) 0 0 0 15 &
AE/LPNO) TR
Sulphur oxides (SO,) kg
X 0 0 0 0.1
Hait(so) T
Respirable suspended particulates (RSP) 0 0 0 01 kg
AR A B FHRLF (RSP) ' T
A1.2 | Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
BEREHEK
Scope 1 tonnes CO,-e
o 0 0 0 104 e
EHEN ABZ&iREE
Scope 2 tonnes CO,-e
o 6.7 7.2 8.6 107 o
#E?2 ABZ&iREE
Scope 1 and 2 Total GHG emissions 6.7 72 86 11 tonnes CO,-e
HE1R2AZERBATENE ' ) ' T AMZEltiES
Scope 3 tonnes CO,-e
- 0.2 0.3 5.1 5.0 s e
#E3 ABZ&iRE=E
Scpe 1,2 an\d i T_otal GHG e:usswns 6.9 75 137 261 torlne_s Coj—i )
BE1 2RIBERBAYNE ABZ&iRE=E
tonnes CO,-e/
GHf emissions intensity 23 11 20 37 eriplioyeew
BERBERZE yNU: =R |2
£/kB
A1.3 Hazardous waste’
BEEEN
Total hazardous waste tonnes
. 0 0 0.0009 0.003
BEEZENEE NI
Hazardous waste intensity tonnes/employee
L 0 0 0.0001 0.0004 =
BEBRZENEE NV
! Hazardous waste includes waste batteries, waste fluorescent light tubes — ° BEFEEVREREED  BRAEERERNE -

and waste toner cartridges.
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Environmental KPIs
REBRENIEE

Quantity
¥E

2022

2021

—T-—&F —T-—&

A1.4 | Non-hazardous waste
BEREY
Total non-hazardous waste tonnes
. 0.004 0.015 0.068 0.121
mEBRZEYEES NI
Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/employee
R 0.001 0.002 0.01 0.02 -
EEREEYTE NP =
A2.1 Energy consumption
BERHRE
Petrol MWh
s 0 0 0 34.0
i S LB
Purchased electricity MWh
- 9.8 10.2 12.1 13.2
BEE KE
Total energy consumption MWh
s m oz 2 9.8 10.2 12.1 47.2 R
Energy consumption intensi Mwh/employee
%:? N P Y 3.3 15 17 18| ipt
ERERERE kEK/EE
A2.2 | Water consumption
FRE
Total water consumption me
34.0 30.0 10.72 13.1 N
BEKE MK
Water consumption intensity ms/employee
- 1.3 43 1.5 1.9 L =
FAEE MNAK/EE
A2 Paper consumption
EREFE
Total paper consumption tonnes
= 0.04 0.1 - -
BREREE NI
Water consumption intensity 0.01 001 - - tonnes/employee
BREEEE ' ' AW/ EE
2 Some data not yet available as of reporting and estimated on a pro rata 2 HEREBBAHARREE TEIE - Utz fl
basis. YEfGET ©

BRERBEBRERD T
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Social Performance

HERR

38

Social KPIS
HERRENEE
Workforce?
BE 3
Gender Male 6
B %
Female
2
Z
Age group Below 30 0
FiR# R 30U T
30to 50 3
30E505%
Above 50 5
S50BRIA £
Employee category Senior management 6
fEE %8R BRERE
Middle management 1
R ERE
General staff 1
—mEL
Employment type Full-time 7
EELER iy
Part-time 1
FRE

3

All employees are in Hong Kong operations.
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Social KPIS

HERRENEE

Total workforce

EEBE 8 7 7

Employee turnover rate

EBERKE

Gender

ey %a'e 33% 0% 0%
;ema'e 0% 100% 0%

Age group Below 30 B B B

FEMa R 30T
28 ;_2 ggﬁ 339% 60% 0%
?g%i f’i 20% 0% 0%

Total empl rnover r

Work-related fatality and/or injury

BI%RTR HZE

Number of work-related fatalities 0 0 0

AT AK

Number of employees injured at work 0 0 0

ATIZEEEAZ

'g‘;;y;ate 0% 0% 0%

70 “T
Lost days due to work injury 0 0 0
ATHEERTIIEAE

BRERBEBRERD T
T ZFFR 39
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Social KPIS

HERRENEE
Employee training
EEEI
Percentage received training® o o o
SUES FHH 100% 100% 100%
Average training hours®
T 45 T2 25 17.50 17.86 128.6
Gender Male
R & 15 15 15
Female
% 25 25 280
Employee category Senior management 15 15 18
fEE %A SRERRE
Middle management?
FRERES 40 40 80
General staff
—mET 10 10 10
Supply Chain Management
HpEEEE
Number of suppliers (location) 28 26 26
HrEmE g GhE) (Hong Kong: | (Hongkong: | (Hong Kong:
100%) 100%) 100%)
(FH 1 100%) |(F75 : 100%) (BB : 100%)
Community Investment
Number of volunteer hours
% TR 63 " "
4 Percentage received training = total number of employees trained in the ¢ ZIEEBE =% ERZIEEBH %A

category/number of employees in the category. The percentage of
employees trained by gender and employee category are both 100%.

5 Average training hours = total training hours for employees in the category/
number of employees in the category. Exclude the training hours of
resigned employees during the Reporting Period.

6 Include training hours of on-job training. The Company is an authorised
employer of the Practical Experience Framework under Hong Kong Institute
Certified Public Accountants.
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX BIFRE HEREARHREESIR

Disclosure/ Page Index/
KPIs Remarks
WEEE Content HEESl
BREVIER AR Eid 2
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
B ESIE
Governance (i) A disclosure of the board's oversight of ESG issues. 22-23
Structure () HEEEGHRE HEREREEMES -
EIARE

(i) The board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including the 22-24

process used to evaluate, prioritise and manage material ESG-related
issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses)

) EEERIRE e REAERTHEER - BENE - @RENRER
BEMRR  HERES *EF%%H(@%;T%*HJ\%%%E’JH 2) B IBAR o
(i) How the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals and 23
targets with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

(iif) %Aﬁﬂﬂhﬁaiﬁ HEkEGEBEERNER - WHEBE MMM EE

TAEBHEEZE
Reporting Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to identify and the 20
Principles criteria for the selection of material ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder
i 7 JR Al engagement is conducted, a description of significant stakeholders identified,

and the process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

BEM RS U LEAMEEEE  ((ENEERE e kE/AR
FEIE R EEERERMER: (VRBETADETHOESHE 23N

EEROENRARETARNELSENBERS

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions 20

and/or calculation tools used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where applicable) should be

disclosed.

Bt BHERSENRE ERER (WER) TANEE - 5E BR k%
ETAMNER  ARAEANEREZNNRETIKE -

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any changes to the 21
methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful

comparison.

—EHM BITABRERE  HgREAWMET BB AANBRERE

EWEE (B AFNEMEEEERLRNEERE -

Reporting A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and 21
Boundary describing the process used to identify which entities or operations are
VE 2 &6 2] included in the ESG report.

BERE HELEAMENERGE  NiEdEP L TR ETHA
R HEREAWMENBIE

EREREBRERAT 41
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Disclosure/ Page Index/
KPIs EINET G
wEEE Content EEESl
BEERIERE AR R
Comply or Explain Provisions

[ TR AR R

A. Environmental

A RE

Aspect A1: Emissions

EBEA1: HBY

General Information on: 24, 28-31

Disclosure (@) the policies; and

—RRIEEE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
EHEERMAZEREBYN  MAKRTHAOES BERBEEEVNEL
£
(@) BE: &
(b) ErHEITABERZENREEZE IR
HIE R

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 30, 36
PR R KA N A B e PR o

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions and 30, 36
intensity.

B# (HBE) kegREE (HE) AERBHREREE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 30, 36
FEEEERENBRERTE

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 30, 37
FFEXBEREEMESERTE -

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 28-29
FFAET N E B E R AESEL B EAMKEM A -

Al1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a 28,30
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HREEAERBEEEEMNTE - REMMAEIZARERERAZEDE
it 5 IEFTEREN ) 2P 5] o
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Disclosure/
KPIs

REEE
REAMIER

Content
B

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EHEA2: ERER

Page Index/
Remarks
EEESl
T8

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other 29, 31

Disclosure raw materials.

—RRIREE BRERER(BIEER - KREMEREME) BYEE -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. 31,37
REASSMEER LEZERAREEREE -

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 31,37
BFREKENKE o

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve 29
them.
FFTEI W RE AN E R R AEI LB EMERRN TR -

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for 29, 31
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
UK EGE AKR LI B ERIERE - ARFTE] S M AR B2 R A E S
EL B RFTEENA) PR o

A25 Total packaging material used for finished products and per unit produced. The Group does

HEMFABEMHNEERSEESEMIEE -

not provide
tangible

products and is
not involved in

packaging.
N SETR g 3E
JEB Em &
R Sk

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EBHEA3: RERXAER

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and 28-31
Disclosure natural resources.
—MRIREE WARBITAHRBERAAERENERTZERBUR
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and 28-31
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
i EBEDHRERRAERNEAZEREANEREERTENTE -
EREREBERA A

ZE=FFR
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Disclosure/
KPIs

REEE
BEAMIER

Content
A&

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BHEAL . TIRE1L

Page Index/
EINEG
EEESl
T8

General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues 30
Disclosure which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
—BHE BRI REHEERAESEHBITAESZENERRGHEBESENEE
A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and 30
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB KR EHETAEERENERARAGEREE - RIEHTE -
B. Social
B.# &
Aspect B1: Employment
BmEB1: EE
General Information on: 24,31-32
Disclosure (@) the policies; and
—RRIREE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
Bz E&H&ﬁﬂ% BERE  IERE - B TEHE 2ok RE
RA R E At 7538 RAR Y -
(@ BR: K&
(b) BFHBEITABEALEBNEBERZ LRI
HWEH -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical 38
region.
IR EEER - FieER REESMNIEE LS -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 39
ZIER - FERARNRMEE D BEE MK E -

44
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Disclosure/
KPIs

REEE
REAMIER

Content
B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: BEHEZE

Page Index/
Remarks
EEESl
T8

General Information on: 24, 32-33
Disclosure (@) the policies; and
—BHE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
ERRHELZE2THERRAREESEABRESEEN
(@ E%: &
(b) BFHEITABERTENRBEZ LR
B R o
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three 33,39
years including the reporting year.
BAZF (BEERFE) BFEITHMHAS KL E -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 39
ETEEATIEEH -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how 32-33
they are implemented and monitored.
TR B R E L 2 - UEAEERITRERTE -
Aspect B3: Development and Training
BEB3 : #&ERIEZI
General Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for discharging duties 33
Disclosure at work. Description of training activities.
—RIEE EHRRAREBITIIERENAE R EEMEER - Rl sFIES -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category. 40
ZURIREBEANESPHNZIEEET DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee 33,40
category.
ZURIREEERE D BREETHIINA TR -
EREREBERA A

ZE=FFR
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Disclosure/
KPIs

REEE
BEAMIER

Content
A&

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
JEHEB4 : & T XA

Page Index/
EINEG
EEESl
T8

General Information on: 24,32
Disclosure (@) the policies; and
—BHE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
B IEET A% TH)
@@ BE: &
(b) BFHEITABERTENBEBEE IR
HYEH -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 32
forced labour.
iR B E G R AR R E T REHSET -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 32
el 7E 23R 8 AR B S E R B B8 1B 00 P BRER Y 25 B o
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[ETEBS5 : HEHEERE
General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 35
Disclosure ERHERENRE R GRBBUR
—RRIREE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 35,40
RMEE S HEEREE -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers 35
where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
HEREAEERNED mMERTEREMNNEEREE - URIEH
BITRERGE-
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along 35
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
A RHAEERESERSNRREREERBAEN - LLREERITR
BERTE o
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products 35
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
M EREHER R REZARRER RRBNED - U REERTRE
BFE
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Disclosure/
KPIs

REEE
BEANIER

BREE

Content
B

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
BHEB6 : EmMEE

Page Index/
Remarks
EEESl
T8

General Information on: 24, 34-35

Disclosure (@) the policies; and

—BHE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress.
ERMERERNRENRERZS BES  SREALBEEURERA
525’9 :

a) Bk &
( ) BTHEBETABEAZENEBEZRBRD
BB -

Bé6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and The Group does
health reasons. not provide
EESEEXEmBEHT AL MEEREAMARKNE S - tangible

products.
IR BD A
JEB T Em o

B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they are Received no
dealt with. complaints.
BEREANERRBRBHIRFEE AREBE T X - MR o

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 34
property rights.

T it B 4 R ARPE RN B EERE A RARVIE I o

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 34
HinEEnTBERERBDKER -

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they 34

are implemented and monitored.

WU BEE ERRERALRRE - URBERTRERTTE -
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Disclosure/
KPIs

REEE
BEAMIER

Content
A&

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EmEB7 : RES

Page Index/
EINET G
EEESl
T8

General Information on: 24,33-34
Disclosure (@) the policies; and
—BHE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
B IERER - 1R - BGFRIERER -
(@ E%: &
(b) BFHEITABERTENBEBEE LR
KB R
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against 24
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of
the cases.
RERARNEETASEREEREYEELENESHFLERGHEE RFL
R o
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how 33-34
they are implemented and monitored.
P E R R R - UARABERITRER A -
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 34
HmMEERE IRHAORESEI -
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEB8 : HERE
General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 35
Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
— M HEE consideration the communities' interests.
BN ES2ERTHEEMTMERTENBRRAZR TS SERLET
AR ©
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 35
HFEREE -
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 35, 40
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
this annual report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the following deviations:

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

The Company did not officially have a chief executive officer. The
daily operation of the Group's business is handled by the executive
Director collectively. The Board is of the view that although there is
no chief executive officer, the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced
individuals who meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting
the operations of the Group. As there is a clear division of
responsibilities of each Director, the vacancies of chief executive
officer and chairman did not have any material impact on the
operations of the Group. The Board will continue to review the
effectiveness of the Group's structure as business continues to
develop in order to assess whether any changes, including the
appointment of a chief executive officer, is necessary.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. The Company has
made specific enquiries and all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year Under Review.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board's primary responsibilities are to formulate long-term
corporate strategy, to oversee the management of the Group, to
evaluate the performance of the Group and to assess the
achievement of targets periodically set by the Board, while the
management of the Company is responsible for the daily
management and operations of the Group. The Board is directly
accountable to the Shareholders and is responsible for preparing the
accounts.

EEEeMAREHE_ZT-_=F+=_-A8
Z+—BHUIFEAFTHRAHACEE ARESE -

BFEEEERTR

RAEBE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HILFE "
ARBIBET EMAAUMES T UAHTEE
JASTRIZ BT A SFAMES - LA TR BE B IE R
G

STRMGEXA2 IR E X FERBITHRAR 2 AEE
BEy U PEAR - ALEE - TFETT
BB zBBEZOIRBEERELAERE
SIH o

ARABWEIEATHAR - AREEKZH
FEERPTESSERERE -EFERR
BELEBTHAS HEFTShHELRAL
MK RETREENTREEASREEE
ZEH BREFSZEFBRESETE -
HREEFZREIH TRAEERETFEZ
EREAEELCEYBENEATE -EF
ERBEEEBFERR BEERAEER
B NG EFBEFEHEAES
BREEITREE -

EERSFXS

ARREHRMELETR  EREFETES
RPZITRTH - ARFCHFHEEENR
MABEFCHIARENDEFE —HER
FARESTRIFTE R E 2 IREME -

£
EXZQ7IZ2RERFIERELERME
BAKEZEE - W AN B ZEBUA &G
GHEBELEREFEEHFIL2BE  MA
NRAEEEREARERREENES &
FEERABRRER  YABREKE -

BE

oo

EREREBRERAT
TR CCZFFER

49



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREAHRES

During the Year Under Review, the management of the Company
provided (i) sufficient explanation and information to the Board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before it for approval; and (ii) all the Directors with
timely updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five Directors, whose biographical
details are set out in the “Profile of the Directors” on pages 10 to 12
of this annual report. One of the Directors is executive, one is non-
executive and three are independent non-executive. The three
independent non-executive Directors bring a broad range of
financial, regulatory and commercial experience and skills to the
Board, which contributes to the effective strategic management of
the Group. The executive Directors are not permitted to engage in
any other business which is in competition with that of the Group,
and are required to devote sufficient business time to the business
and affairs of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified in
all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules. An
updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions is
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
at www.0036.com.hk.

To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors, there is no
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among the Board members.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

In accordance with article 73 of the Articles, at the annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from
office.

In accordance with article 78 of the Articles, a director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company,
and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with article 80 of the Articles, the Company may by an
ordinary resolution remove any Director (including a managing or
other executive Director, but without prejudice to any claim for
damages under any contract) before the expiration of his period of
office, and may by an ordinary resolution appoint another person in
his stead.

The Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken
against the Directors arising from the corporate activities.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors
The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in respect of his
independence during the Year Under Review pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. All the independent non-executive Directors are
still considered to be independent.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and considers and approves the overall
strategies and policies of the Group. An agenda accompanying the
Board/committee papers is distributed to the Directors/members of
the Board committees with reasonable notice in advance of the
meetings. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committees
meetings, which record in sufficient details the matters considered
by the Board/members of the Board committees and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors/members of
the Board committees or dissenting views expressed, are kept by the
company secretary of the Company and open for inspection by the
Directors. Full Board meetings were held for any material
transactions instead of by way of written resolutions and the
independent non-executive Directors who, and whose close
associates, have no material interest in the transactions were
present at such meetings. All the Directors have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management to fulfill
their duties, and to independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances upon reasonable request, at the expense of the
Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, nine Board meetingsand &HEZTZ=F+-_A=+—HIEFEDHE
one general meeting were held. The attendance record of each FFTANEZTE€@HL —ABREAE - TR
Director at the Board meetings and the general meeting is setoutin = K& EEHFEETSSHLRBEAE 208k
the table below:

Board General
meeting attended/ meeting* attended/
Eligible to attend Eligible to attend

HE BHEER HE HEER
HEEEEER HERRAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (appointed REFSAEE(RZTZ=
on 17 February 2023) —A+tHEZT) 7/7 11
Mr. Eric Todd (resigned on ERELEE(RZZTZWUF
29 February 2024) ZAZ T+ BEEHE) 9/9 171
Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho (resigned B LA (RZZE =4
on 17 February 2023) ZHA+tEHEE) 1/1 0/0
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Zhu Weiwen (appointed as KEXGRE(RZEZ=F
Director on 20 March 2023 and —AZ+HEZERES -
re-designated on 29 February 2024) i — = — U4
Z—AZTHARHAEE) 2/5 171
Independent Non-Executive BAFHITES
Directors
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BRELE 5/9 0/1
Mr. Lam Wai Hung MEHE A 9/9 11
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard MEBREE(RZZT=F
(appointed on 17 November 2023) +—A++HEZT) 0/0 0/0
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny FEREE(RZE_=F
(resigned on 19 June 2023) NAT AR 5/5 11
* The meeting was the annual general meeting held on 5 June 2023. * FARAERR_E_=FARARTZRFE
BN
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Continuous Professional Development

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
have participated in the following forms of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in

compliance with the requirements of the CG Code on continuous  Z3HEHZEIE - LABR K4 70 Ak L Ak
professional development for the year ended 31 December 2023:
Reading
Attending materials
training relevant to
conducted by director’s
professional duties and
parties responsibilities
SMEEKE MERESHK
Directors B= EiTzEdl RBEABEZR
Executive Directors iﬂﬁﬁ%
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming REFSEE
(appointed on 17 February 2023) (RZE-_=ZF-_A+EREZMT) v v
Mr. Eric Todd EREAE(RZTHF
(resigned on 29 February 2024) ZAZTABEE) v v
Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho ERALE
(resigned on 17 February 2023) (RZZE=Z=F =R+t HET) v v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Zhu Weiwen KENGRERZZZ=F=H=+H
(appointed as Director on BEZEREE YR -_T-_MF
20 March 2023 and re-designated on ZRAZTABHAT)
29 February 2024) v v
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHiTESE
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BERELE v v
Mr. Lam Wai Hung WEERE v v
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard MEREE(RZZTZ=F
(appointed on 17 November 2023) +T—ATtHEZE) v v
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny FEREERZZE-=FATNA
(resigned on 19 June 2023) BiL) - v
ERERERERAT 53
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has not had a designated chief executive officer and
the Chairman and the day-to-day management of the Group's
business is handled by the executive Directors collectively. The
Board believes that the present arrangement is adequate to ensure
an effective management and control of the Group’s business
operations.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The existing independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

During the Year Under Review, the independent non-executive
Directors made positive contributions to the development of the
Company'’s strategies and policies through independent,
constructive and informed comments.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The Group's risk management and internal control system includes a
well-defined management structure with limits of authority which is
designed for the achievement of business objectives, detailed risk
identification procedures and risk management process, safeguard
assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure proper
maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

During the Year Under Review, the Board through the Audit
Ccommittee had conducted review on the risk management of the
Group. The review covered risk management functions of the Group.
Appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the risks.
No major issue was raised for improvement.

The Board currently takes the view that there is no immediate need
to set up an internal audit function in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the Group’s business. The need for an internal audit
function will be reviewed from time to time. During the Year Under
Review, the Board, through the Audit Committee and an independent
accounting firm, has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and is satisfied that the
internal control systems within the Group are effective.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the auditors of the Company
received approximately HK$550,000 for audit services (2022:
HK$560,000).

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group, and are prepared in accordance with the
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, therefore, the
Directors continue to adopt the going concern approach in preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The statement of
the external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 62
to 67 of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following Board committees to
oversee the particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with written
terms of reference which are consistent with the provisions set out
in the relevant section of the CG Code and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
www.0036.com.hk.

The Audit Committee is principally responsible for reviewing with the
management of the Company, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the auditing, risk management
and internal control system, financial reporting matters including the
review of the consolidated financial statements, and appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor and approving its
remuneration and terms of engagement and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor. It also acts as an important
link between the Board and the Company's auditor in matters within
the scope of the Group’s audit. Currently, the Audit Committee
comprises all the independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Lam Wai Hung (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Mak Ka Wing,
Patrick and Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard.
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The works performed by the Audit Committee during the Year Under
Review are mainly as follows:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(Vi)

(Vii)

reviewed the condensed consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023 and the
related interim results announcement and made
recommendations to the Board that the same be approved,;

reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the related annual
results announcement and auditor’s report; and made
recommendations to the Board that the same be approved,;

reviewed external auditor’s report to the Audit Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2023,

reviewed the report of the external auditor and made
recommendations to the Board for their re-appointment at the
annual general meeting on 5 June 2023;

reviewed corporate governance and internal control systems,
enterprise risk assessment report, internal control review
report and effectiveness of risk management system;

reviewed the fees for audit and non-audit services provided by
the external auditor; and

met with the external auditor in the absence of management.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, four meetings were held.
The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee is as
follows:
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(Vi)
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(vii)

REBE-_ST-_=F+-_A=+—HILEEH
BONAESH SERZESKEL B
s

Audit Committee
meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

HE/HE
EiRHE
BERXEEEER
Mr. Lam Wai Hung (chairman of WEELE (BREZEEER)
the Audit Committee) 4/4
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BREXE 3/4
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard MEEEAE
(appointed on 17 November 2023) (RZZBZ=F+—A+tHEZT) 11
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny FEEA A
(resigned on 19 June 2023) (M—ZE-=FXATHLEET) 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established by the Board with written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant section of
the CG Code, and the same are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company at www.0036.com.hk.

The Remuneration Committee is principally responsible for
formulating and making recommendation to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management of the Company. No Director is involved in
deciding his own remuneration. Currently, the Remuneration
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard (chairman of the
Remuneration committee), Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick and Mr. Lam
Wai Hung.

During the Year Under Review, the Company’s policy and the
structure of the remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management of the Company have been reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and recommendations have been made to
the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, three Remuneration
Committee meetings were held. The attendance record of each
member of the Remuneration Committee is as follows:
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Remuneration
Committee
meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

HE BE
B HE
FMEESER
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard (chairman of MEREE(FHFHEESER)

the Remuneration Committee) (RZEZ=F+—A+tRAEZF)

(appointed on 17 November 2023) 0/0
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BRERE 3/3
Mr. Lam Wai Hung WEHE T E 3/3
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny TR LA

(resigned on 19 June 2023) (RZEZ=FATLHEHT) 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) was
established by the Board with written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are consistent with the
provisions set out in the relevant section of the CG Code, and the
same are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company at www.0036.com.hk.

The Nomination Committee is principally responsible for formulating
and making recommendation to the Board regarding the Board
composition. Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises all the
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Mak Ka Wing,
Patrick (chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lam Wai Hung
and Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard.

The Board approved the adoption of the Board Diversity Policy (the
“Policy”) in 2013 and revised in December 2018. It sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. The Company aims to build and maintain a Board
with a diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experience,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and gender. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the Policy
and review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
The Nomination Committee will also discuss any revisions that may
be required and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

During the Year Under Review, the structure, size and composition
of the Board has been reviewed by the Nomination Committee and
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors has
been assessed by the Nomination Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREARES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, three Nomination
Committee meetings were held. The attendance record of each
member of the Nomination Committee is as follows:

BE_T_=-FT_A=+—HLFE &
REBERTZREH BRELZEENKE

HEREReRan T ¢

Nomination
Committee
meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

HEBE
ERHE
REZEE8RE
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (chairman of BREFEREBEZESER)
the Nomination Committee) 3/3
Mr. Lam Wai Hung WEHE T E 3/3
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard MEEREE
(appointed on 17 November 2023) (RZZBE_=F+—A+tBHEZT) 0/0
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny TR A&
(resigned on 19 June 2023) (R—ZE-=FNATHLHET) 2/2

Investment Committee

The investment committee of the Company (the “Investment
Committee”) was established by the Board with written terms of
reference.

The Investment Committee is principally responsible for reviewing
and evaluating any investment projects proposed by the Group and
making recommendations to the Board on such investment projects.
It also monitors the investments of the Group. Currently, the
Investment Committee comprises Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (chairman of
the Investment Committee), an executive Director and Mr. Lam Wai
Hung, an independent non-executive Director.

During the Year Under Review, the Investment Committee provided
guidance and recommendations to the Board on investment
projects.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the Year Under Review, the Board was responsible for
performing the functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code. The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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TREAHRES

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year Under Review, the company secretary of the
Company was Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (“Mr. Cheung"). Mr. Cheung
confirmed that he had received not less than 15 hours professional
training during the Year Under Review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communications with the Shareholders and investors. The
Board also recognises that effective communication with its investors
is critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract new
investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high
degree of transparency to ensure the investors and the Shareholders
will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of
the Group through the publications of annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and circulars. The Company also publishes all
corporate communications on the Company’s website at
wWww.0036.com.hk. The Directors and members of various committees
of the Board will attend the AGM and answer any questions raised.
The chairman of general meetings of the Company would explain the
procedures for conducting a poll before proposing a resolution for
voting. The poll results will be published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company at www.0036.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining an
appropriate basis for dividend distribution, the Board will take into
account, inter alia, results of operations, financial condition, the
payment by the Group’s subsidiaries of cash dividends to the
company, future prospects, legal and tax considerations and other
factors the Board deems appropriate. The Directors will consider if
there is material adverse impact on the Group's financial and liquidity
position arising out of the dividend payments. Dividends may be paid
out by way of cash or by other means that the Group considers
appropriate.

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Convening General Meeting by
Shareholders

The procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting
(including making proposals/moving a resolution at the general
meeting) can be found in article 41 of the Articles, which is available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
Www.0036.com.hk.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at the
general meetings can be found in article 41 of the Articles, which is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
www.0036.com.hk. The procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the website of the
Company at www.0036.com.hk.

Procedures for Making Enquiry to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the registered office of the Company by post or
by fax at (852) 2110 1159 or by email to admin@feholdings.com.hk.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency
is a key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to the
Shareholders and public investors. The Company updates the
Shareholders on its latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual and interim reports. The corporate
website of the Company (http://www.0036.com.hk) has provided an
effective communication platform to the public and the Shareholders.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYRHAMBES

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Far East
Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 134, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYXHAMBRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 4(c) and 18 to the consolidated financial statements)

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with the significant
judgement associated with the determination of the fair value.
HREREGENBRRABERBEWUEEZ  NIIEERATFESRE
RAE - BHHERMEREMELERN SEREZEE -

The Group's investment properties are located in Hong Kong and its
carrying amount of HK$1,331,800,000 represented approximately
98.2% of the Group's total assets as at 31 December 2023. A fair
value loss on the investment properties amounted to HK$86,300,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2023.
BEEBECREMEMRESE ER_ZT_=F+-A=+—Hx
IREE A% 1,331,800,0007T - 16 BEEEBEELB2% - HZE
ZE =T ZA=THLEFE ERGFEEREAEMEEI
mER MR E Y v AT EEE B 86,300,0007T °

All of the Group's investment properties are stated at fair value and
estimated based on the valuations carried out by independent
qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer”). The valuations are
dependent on market observable transactions of similar properties
and adjusted to reflect the conditions and locations of the subject
properties, which involves management’s significant judgement.
EEBEMABREMESDEAFTENE  UREBISEREEM
ERD ([{EERD]) /T 2 A EMAEET - HEIUAREUME 2T
BABRITG  WIEHABRURMREBEYE ZRIRAE - it
BREBEEXRAL -

RREFEXER

ARECFEASRERMIEXHAE B
PAMEASEMBRRERTIETRRER
ZEE RPN EZERGEAMBHRREE
HEEEERHBEER MAEREFS
BEBRLRER -

BREMRME
(2B A M IHRARMEAC) %218)

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:
BRI EMEHEFRNT 2EFBIE

o Evaluating the Valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity,
SHEEER  BEREE e REEIE:

o Obtaining the understanding of valuation
approach, process, assumptions and
technigues adopted by the Valuer to
assess if they are consistent with
industry norms;
TRMEEMEMNZHERE  RE R
&R AR R B EITEIEN

o Inquiring the reasonableness of the
sources of data and key assumptions
used by the management and the Valuer
to assess if they are relevant,
comparable and appropriate; and
BT E KA E AT AT ER A 8B SRR &2
FTERXZAEN  UFEHERTHE
B AT NGEE &

o Checking arithmetical accuracy of the
resultant calculations.
WEHEHER CEMERT -
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BYRHAMBES

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
Directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSASs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUREMERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine  #HEEEZ BB EFET  RAE T Y AR
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the HAMBREZBEEZZAEE 2 EH HAM
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are R EBAHEZEZE - RPN ZEMAREEZ D
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our fHulZEEIE  BIDARIAM IR FHE
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure =B EE ARHEE ¥ BmFER 2150
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we T~ HAREHAR R MBREEFHBELEE
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report MiEK v BEEEREeBBEESZ AR
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be  # » IR E N ERHEEH E@ZEE -
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BDO Limited BERAVEEEETMEXEMERAR
Certified Public Accountants B EEAD

Chau Ka Kin BER

Practising Certificate no. P07445 HE B E R P07445

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024 B —E-IMF=ZA=+<H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBmkEtEEEERE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

2023 2022

—E-=HF —E-F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

ftat BT T BB F T

Revenue & 7 9,256 4,696

Rental operating cost HELEKR (2,957) (3,030)

Net rental income He WA FHE 6,299 1,666

Other income e 8 89 205

Other gains and losses, net H & T & E1EFRE 9 (83,120) (84,530)

Administrative expenses THBRX (4,606) (4,590)

Finance costs B 75 B AR 10 (40,799) (20,498)

Loss before income tax BRETISELRTE B 11 (122,137) (107,747)

Income tax expense Frisfim 12 (445) (233)
Loss and total comprehensive income  AEFEIE R 2GS

for the year 4 FE (122,582) (107,980)

Loss for the year attributable to: REERIBAIEBRN

Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ =N (72,851) (68,799)

Non-controlling interests eI (49,731) (39,181)

(122,582) (107,980)

Loss per share — Basic (HK cents) SRR EE — EAR ) 17 (6.69) (6.32)

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BRI E

As at 31 December 2023 R-_ZE-_=F+-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iikz3 BT T B F T
Non-current assets EREBEE

Investment properties "EYE 18 1,331,800 1,418,100
Property, plant and equipment Wz BERRE 19 16,270 16,664
1,348,070 1,434,764

Current assets REEE
Corporate bond TEESH 20 600 600
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBRE 21 4,740 1,560
Rental and other receivables FEU A & I Ho At FE YR IR 22 801 2,194
Tax recoverable AU E IR - 1,853
Deposits held in a financial institution R—HEREBERE 2T 23 1 32
Bank balances and cash RITHEFLRRE® 23 1,670 762
7,812 7,001

Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HiENZIEREER 24 26,666 10,478
Tax payable FET IR 61 205
Amount due to a non-controlling interest &~ 3F$5° A% # %5 7K 18 25 44,420 26,437
Bank borrowing RITEE 27 410,551 431,079
Loan from a non-controlling interest IR B R 28 152,700 152,700
Other loans HEMER 29 27,200 4,000
661,598 624,899
Net current liabilities REEEFE (653,786) (617,898)
Net assets EEFE 694,284 816,866

BRERBEBRERD T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BRI E

As at 31 December 2023 R-_ZE-_=F+—-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
st BT BT T
Capital and reserves A

Share capital &N 30 632,610 632,610
Reserves ] 31 (283,469) (210,618)

Equity attributable to owners of the IN/NESTE ¥ SN X
Company M 349,141 421,992
Non-controlling interests FEPE RS 38 345,143 394,874
Total equity DA 694,284 816,866

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 134 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors (the
"Board") on 26 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Sze Ming
Director
EZF
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KEX
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERSHX

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—LT=-_=F+_-_HA=+—HIEFE

Attributable
Properties to owners Non-
Share  revaluation Accumulated of the  controlling
capital reserve losses ~ Company interests Total
NEER YA

e R RIER RRARE  FEREs hE
HKSOO0  HKSOOD  AKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  AKSTOD
ERTL  ERTT  BRTT BRTT ARTT ARTR

Balance at 1 January 2022 R-B-ZE-A-H2ER 632,610 3283 (145,102 490,791 434,055 924,846

Loss and total comprehensive income  AFEBER2ENR

for the year g% - - (68,799) (68,799) (39.181) (107,980
Balance at 31 December 2022 WZBEZZE+ZF=t-H
2E8 632,610 3,283 (213901) 42199 394,874 816,366

Loss and total comprehensive income  AFEBER2EMNS

for the year z% - - (72.851) (72,851) 49,731) (122582)
Balance at 31 December 2023 WZBEZ=E+ZF=t-H
&8 632,610 3283 (286,752) 309,141 345,143 694,284

EREREBRERAT 71
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE—T=_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

72

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ftat BT T BB F T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETED
Loss before income tax BrPTISELRIE R (122,137) (107,747)
Adjustments for: BT SIEFE
Interest income FBHA 8 (45) (90)
Interest expense MERZ 10 40,799 20,498
Fair value loss on investment "EWMEZ NFEEE
properties 9 86,300 79,700
Unrealised fair value (gain)/loss on FIEEBERE ZRER
held-for-trading investments ATE W), BB 9 (3,180) 1,350
Bad debt written off 2 AR M 8 169 -
Depreciation of property, plant M BE REETE
and equipment 394 459
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz = 9 - (17)
Operating cash flows before movements &8 & ¢ & & a1 2 K LB &
in working capital me 2,300 (5,847)
Decrease in held-for-trading investments 5 {F & & % & j# = 3,417
Decrease/(increase) in rental and FEU R & I Ho At FE YR IR
other receivables (35 n) 1,224 (1,584)
Increase in other payables and accruals — H fth & 15 F0IB K& JE 5+ 2 FA 38 0 391 1,884
CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS &E& £ 5 (FrH)BEE 3,915 (2,130)
Tax refund R EIFIE 1,853 -
Tax paid SRR (589) -
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) ReETEHME (A BEE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEE 5,179 (2,130)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
withdrawal of deposits held in RN —Hem#iEEs
a financial institution 2R 31 12,460
Interest received B UF & 45 90
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries & W B A 75508 - 40
NET CASH FROM INVESTING REETHREBREFEH
ACTIVITIES 76 12,590

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—LT=-_=F+_-_HA=+—HIEFE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iiFza BT T BT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & EE
Interest paid B AT FE 39 (25,002) (15,122)
Advance from non-controlling interest ~ FEIZE G RE S AL 39 17,983 11,466
Repayment of mortgage loan EEZIBER 39 (20,528) (20,528)
Advance from other loans HEEREBR 39 27,200 4,000
Repayment of other loans EEEMER 39 (4,000) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RMEEBFTAESEE
ACTIVITIES (4,347) (20,184)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HeRBELEEY2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i GRd) BEE 908 (9,724)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZRERBEEEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 762 10,486
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REKRZEERREEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 1,670 762

BRERBEBRERD T
—E-EER 73



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

1. GENERAL

Far East Holdings International Limited (“the Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office is Unit
904, 9/F, Wings Building, 110-16 Queen'’s Road Central, Central,

1. Mt

Hong Kong, which is also its principal place of business. 04E  MAHEFTBEEMI -

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRPNERUBREEN(FAEAH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") iR EZH )
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (@) HMFT/ BIETEBUBER

on 1 January 2023

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020
and February 2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

BB mELERE75R
(BRE-ZZE-EF+ARZE-C
ZAZ BB BHmELERNETRZ
EETAR)

Amendments to HKAS 8

BB EFERIE R 2B

Amendments to HKAS 12

BB ERF 125 2B R
Amendments to HKAS 12
ERGFERIE 125 2B A
Amendment to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BB ERE1 KRBV B®RE
EHBEBMEFE 2R IEFT A

74 FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

HEA —NR-T-=%—A4

—BER

Insurance Contracts

&g

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Gt hETEE

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

HE-XHEFECZEAERBGEREBZRLENIE

International Tax Reform-Pillar Two Model Rules

BRI E — X ZRAIES AR

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SRR E

EREREBRERAR (TARE]D TR
BREMKLZBRAR - ERNHNE
BBMERZMBRAR (MR L
me EEfMMERMU R BEETIRE
FEREBEF 1016 KEFHERNEIR

ARBRREZERAR - KB RRZ
TEEBHN G M MRS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

RMEREMBRELEN(EFEY
BHREEA D ()

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective

on 1 January 2023 (continued)

Except for the Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements summarised below, the
other new or amended HKFRSs has no material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior period and on accounting policies. The
Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs that
are not yet effective for the current period.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements (Disclosure of
Accounting Policies)

The HKICPA issued HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements in March 2021 to provide entities
with non-mandatory guidance on how to make
materiality judgements when preparing their general
purpose financial statements in accordance with HKFRS.
In April 2021, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2. The amendments aim
to make accounting policy disclosures more informative
by replacing the requirement to disclose “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. The amendments also provide guidance
under what circumstance, the accounting policy
information is likely to be considered material and
therefore requiring disclosure.

These amendments have no effect on the measurement
or presentation of any items in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but affect the disclosure of
accounting policies of the Group.

(a) B RIETERHBE

HEA—R-F-=F—A
—BAERE)

BT X BB SR ERIE 15
[2IH BRI REBRBRE
HRHEBREF 2R MELERNE
HIEN ] ZAERTAGN - EADR AT 3R
ERIRAMBREENHAEE
R E RS e R A 2 KA R
RAAR S BRLBEEATE -
AEEYERARAHE R R E
M AEMEAM T RGBT RE
BT 3RS AR o

BREMEANE 1R 25 BR
RIRERMBRELEAERERS
B2 EHE RN E | 2 BT
F(FHBERE)

BREGOAEN _T-—F=
ABME LY HREENERR
EE2RMELEBREHE ] /E
BRHEE-RENMBHREREN
MREEEWBREEAFELE
KM HV B R IR o B 15 5l -
“E--FMA - BEEGHEBA
SRMEBGTERE IR REL
MBERELENEHREF 2R 2ME
FIAR - ZFERIEHEEBRATER
A BREM R EEEFK
RIBBEABTWRE  EETHE
BEATAEEZEN -ZFE
IR R N8 BR
BERAIERGERERLRAMAT
HEHIES -

ZEEFHAKRE R AW HREK
AN ER 2NN EZE
X EARESHARRIEEANTS -

EREREBRERAT
TR CCZFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RNEARAUBREERN(FAEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSS") (continued) HHEEA]) @)
(b) Revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) EHEMEMKRERZRIERTE
are not yet effective B K HREER

AT AIRE B AR R B4R S B 5 3R
B2 e BEY B R
EREAEDBMAEERERAL
BEANEEEFRMN - NEER
MEERZEEPLERERER

iy A g
ZEEE) o

The following new/revised HKFRSS, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group's current intention is to
apply these changes on the date they become effective.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!
HEEHHEBE NG RNEERRZEZ

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BEMBREERNE10RLREB S

R 2855k 2 1EFT A BELNEIHFEA
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
BERUBHmEERF 165 2B A ErREHEMNEEAE?

Amendments to HKAS 1
BEBEFERE 1R 2B
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB EEERE 1R 2B
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

FE BRI (KEET)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

BEAGHERF7TRLEBN GRS
ZERNE 7SR ZIBE] AR

Amendments to HKAS 21

BEGFTERE 212 BEI R

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be !

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

HEBEDERRBLIERE?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

MR 4 2 IEmBI AR

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause?

2V BMmE —(EEAHBRERERERKE 2
EHER 2z HE?

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

HEERETHE?

Lack of Exchangeability®
BRZ AT RS

determined. AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZZT_WMF—-—A—HkzEHA
2024. 12 FEHAR AR -

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RZZE_AF—A—H&ZER
2025. ih 7 FEHAR AR -

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of adopting the above amendments to
existing standards to the Group. The Group has so far
concluded that the application of these new
pronouncements will have no material impact on the

=
RERERTZE -

WAFE Rz & Hn 2 FEH

AEBECDRERA LIRETAH AR
SERBEANZEERANE-
AEECSRRERZEFH QM
N2 E AR ERE MBI

Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statutory financial statements

The financial information relating to the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 included in this annual report
does not constitute the Company’s statutory annual
consolidated financial statements for those years but is
derived from those financial statements. Further
information relating to these statutory financial
statements required to be disclosed in accordance with
Section 436 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows:

The Company has delivered the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to the Registrar of
Companies as required by Section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of
Schedule 6 to, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
will deliver the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 in due course.

The Company's auditor has reported on the financial
statements of the Group for both years. The auditor’s
reports were unqualified; did not include a reference to
any matters to which the auditor drew attention by way
of emphasis without qualifying its reports; and did not
contain a statement under Sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKAS")
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “"HKFRSs”) and the provisions of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance which concern the preparation of
financial statements. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

mREX

(a)

(b)

EIE B Rk

BALXFRZBE_ZS_=-FR
—EF+ZHA=+—HBLF
BZHBER T TEREARRZ
EFEZEEFELEEWBRE
BAIEMEEZEY BHEk - -H
hWEELEMBHREREBCHME
RBRIBEE B QR GG 5 436 {61
AT HEE

RARIEIRBEBSRGIGHE
6621 K M R 6 E 3B A E 5k -
BARHMEERERBE T
T+ A=+—BIEFEZ
BBmE UTKRREBERERER
HE-_Z-_=-F+-HA=+—H
IEFE 2 8k -

ZAN/NETEY S - TN NS E R R
BzHBHREL S - ZBED
BESEREER  LEFAZ
BHREREHABREER 2
BRT - RAEBIBMEMS M2
HEE: ATHAREZTELQA
f& 71 26 406(2) + 407(2) 3 (3) fE& 1E it
Z B -

EREH
MBHRRIDRRANA T LM BER
XA BAEGAEYN(EES
AEAD k2B (ITXRBEIER
B SRS ZERI L) A R BB QK
{515 BR 4R B M5 R 2 ISR ©
AN BB EREEHINETEBE
RXPABRAR (BRM)) EFH
AT ERRAD REZE
RWEEIA -

EREREBRERAT
TR CCZFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H %=

— = —

— =

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

=EFTA=T—HILLFE

3. mMREEH)

(c) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has net current
liabilities of HK$653,786,000 which mainly included () a
bank borrowing with the demand clause of
HK$410,551,000; and (i) the loan from a non-controlling
interest of HK$152,700,000 that will be matured on
30 April 2024.

The directors of the Company had prepared a cash flow
forecast covering a period of 12 months from the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements
(“Forecast”). The following measures have considered
the Group’s historical operating performance in the
preparation of the Forecast and included certain actions
taken by the Group’s for the purposes of improving its
operating cash flows and financial position:

(@  Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group has
obtained the extension of loan from a non-
controlling interest and the accrued interest to
extend the maturity date to 30 April 2025;

(b)  Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group has
obtained a mortgage loan facility approximately of
HK$70 million by pledging two of its investment
properties,

(c)  The Group will reassess its marketing strategy in
order to decrease the vacancies rate of its
investment properties in the near future; and

(d)  The Group will consider to dispose of certain of its
investment properties to strengthen the liquidity
position of the Group, if necessary.

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(c)
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653,786,000 © = B 8 45 () KT &5
BEREREGEXHRTEESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December2023 #HE—_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (continued)

Taking into account the Forecast and assuming the
successful implementation of the above measures, the
Directors of the Company considered the Group would
be able to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due at least for the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“"HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit
or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

3. wmEEEW

(c)

(d)

AEEERBALERR (A

EE R IBRILRZAKIHET L
L? I ARBEERRAKE
HEEHSEZLERE RGN
BREFRKED+ @AY
BEEEmRETABET - Bt
?v?/:.\ﬁﬂ‘%#&i‘%aiﬂiiﬂ“L%E

WERZIER
MEmRAEE (DB 27
BEMRERRRZINEEE -

4. EREFHEE

(@)

REEE
RAVBRREEANEE 2K
BER -SEARBHEH IR R
HRERARERENIINFERES
MBHREFZHEE - RERE
BINTUEE RIFBEEISE
ROBEEAELRBE ELIIS
AT BERREmER -

Wiz HERERERINE QA

ARSI RE
BERZEEANTHERR 2K
IEJJDLA#T P an B AR an H 1R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

4,
(b) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold land and building in Hong Kong

URBEBZHET W RIETF

Lifts, electrical and office equipment
TR BEERPAEHE
Motor vehicles

at

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s

estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in

profit or l0ss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn
property rental incomes or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Investment
property is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property, calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Leases

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over
the lease term.

4.

EREFTBE®@®)

(c)

(d)

REWMHE
BREMERERARIYERS WA
SkAFE AN IR E S AEA MIE A &
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B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial Instruments

)

Financial assets

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its
debt instruments as financial assets at amortised
cost.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

All equity instruments are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, whereby changes in fair
value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or 10ss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on rental and other receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised
cost. ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

o 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and

o lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLS is
the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for rental
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E TR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HE_—_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For other debt financial assets, ECLs are based on
lifetime ECLS except when there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the allowance will be
based on the 12-months ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group'’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to action such as realising security (if any
is held); or the financial assets is more than 90 days
past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor,

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due;

° the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise,

° it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

° the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 10ss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred which is classifies as financial
liabilities at amortised costs. Financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including other
payables and accruals, borrowings amount due to
non-controlling interest, loan from a non-controlling
interest and other loans are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or 10ss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. BREFBEK®)
(e) Financial Instruments (continued) (e) €WMIAMSE

(vi) Derecognition (vi) BUERER
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the EEHeMEERERREEN
contractual rights to the future cash flows in ZEHNENERKESHE
relation to the financial asset expire or when the ECEZEREETEEAY
financial asset has been transferred and the HREEREIFHIE T HUH
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in MRIGEHR  XEEFE
accordance with HKFRS 9. BUEMR SR EE °
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the EE#HERZIEEETER
obligation specified in the relevant contract is B sESHSk B HAR: - T AL
discharged, cancelled or expires. HERESHAE -

(f) Income taxes () FES

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and FARRSR BB BARIEMEE

deferred tax. I8 o

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary BNEARIIE R IE H B £ FRELE

activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or W HBMAENm S HARB K

disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated AAMBZEBERARE Wik

using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively WMEHREEMAI AR EEHZ

enacted at the end of reporting period. The amount of TR E - BB e ok B K B 18

current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of SREATEEE T EZ FIE

the tax amount expected to be paid or received that SR REME RBEMEH

reflects any uncertainty related to income tax. BE 2 E RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for temporary difference arising on (i) goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes (i) initial recognition of assets
and liabilities that are not part of the business
combination which affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences and (iii) investments in
subsidiaries where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised, provided that the
deductible temporary differences are not arises from
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
other than in a business combination that affects neither
taxable profit nor the accounting profit and does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(8

Income taxes (continued)

An exception to the general requirement in determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on
these investment properties are measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting period
in which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related
service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E TR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HE_—_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Related parties
(@  Aperson or a close member of that person'’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Company;,

(i has significant influence over the Company;
or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Company or the Company's parent

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December2023 #HE—_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the
Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner,

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iiy  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting

policies

(i) Going concern basis
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the financing plan assessed
as detailed in note 3(c) to these consolidated
financial statements. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this
assumption is not a guarantee as to the Group’s
and Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

FTEEHHERMEAFTIRERE
ZEERR (@)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5.
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) AFTFEERZZETERR

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within next financial year are as follows:

Fair value measurement

A number of assets included in the Group's financial
statements require measurement at, and/or disclosure
of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial and
non-financial assets utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining
fair value measurements are categorised into different
levels based on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised are (the “fair value
hierarchy”):

e Level 1. Quoted price in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

e Level 2. Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data)

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

o Investment properties (note 18); and

o Held-for-trading investments (note 21)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value

measurement of the items above, please refer to the
applicable notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker
("CODM") that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments are
managed separately as each business offers different products
and services and requires different business strategies. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group's reportable segments:

Property investment —  property investment

Securities investment —  short-term securities investment
Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar order. Certain revenue
and expenses are not allocated to the operating segments as
they are not included in the measure of the segments’ profit/
loss that is used by the CODM for assessment of segment
performance.

The unallocated other operating income mainly represents the
interest income and government subsidy. The unallocated
expenses mainly represent the head office expenses including
directors’ emoluments, employee costs, legal and professional
fees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEW|E )
(a) Segment revenues and results (@ PHKERESE

ATAAREERAHREREED
ME D 2 W RFRE 2 DT

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_ZE-_=f+=-A=+—H

IEEE
Property Securities
investment investment Consolidated

MERE BERE wma

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT BT T
Segment revenue 7 EB UL
External revenue (note 7) INERU Z= (B RE7) 9,256 - 9,256
Segment results D EBELE (103,847) 3,167 (100,680)
Other operating income Hapb g s 89
Unallocated expenses KoOBLHZ (21,546)
Loss before income tax b ETIS BRI E 1B (122,137)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-_2-__f+-RA=t—-H

IEFEE
Property Securities
investment investment Consolidated
VLA BHIEE RE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Segment revenue 7 EB UL
External revenue (note 7) ShEBUEs (FFE7) 4,696 - 4,696
Segment results DEELE (88,389) (4,868) (93,257)
Other operating income H g las 205
Unallocated expenses R BLF (14,695)
Loss before income tax bR TSR A ES 1B (107,747)
EREZERBERERAR

ZEC=FFR
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HE_—_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEH/E (&)
(@) Segment revenues and results (continued) (@) o EBUrzE I 3EE (&)
Segment results represent the profit/loss from each DEEETIESEDBZHEFE
segment including items disclosed in other segment B BRETXEMD FBE BT #
information below, net of selling and distribution costs TB2HEB  HKREE RS EKR
and administrative expenses directly attributable to each RSN EERELEITEHRAS -
segment without allocation of other operating income WADEEMEE T RDER
and corporate expenses. Unallocated items comprise Yo RNEHBEBERBREYIIFEER
corporate expenses which are not directly attributable to BREEANRED 2 PEMT -
a particular reportable segment. This is the measure WIS ERSERRBIEME
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource REBREEZEMIGHTER L
allocation and performance assessment. The segment BERESH 2D HEEBRIER
results of the securities investment segment include the {’EE'-T BEHRE 2 AT EREHERE
fair value gain or loss on held-for-trading investments BAREDE EEEGITIAS
and administrative expenses directly attributable to the
securities investment segment.
(b) Other segment information (b) HfttpEEFR
The following other segment information is included in RETENFERHDETATME
the measure of segment profit or loss: fth 5> &6 & H
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-_=%+=-A=+—H
IEFE
Property Securities
investment investment Consolidated
YERE BHERE =48
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETFT BYT T BT
Depreciation of property, M - B Rk
plant and equipment REITE 394 - 394
Unrealised fair value gain RIEEBREL
on held-for-trading investments K& IR A F(E Wz - 3,180 3,180
Fair value loss on investment BEMEZ
properties NEEEE (86,300) = (86,300)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Other segment information (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. DEHE H)

(b)

Hit o HER (&)
BE-Z-_—_f+=ZBA=+—H
IEEE

Property Securities
investment investment  Consolidated
MR E FHIE RE
HK$'000 HK$‘000 HK$'000
B FT B F T BT T
Depreciation of property, mE - WE Kk
plant and equipment JEITE (459) - (459)
Unrealised fair value loss RIEEBHREL
on held-for-trading investments ~ KEIR A FEEHIE - (1,350) (1,350)
Realised loss on held-for-trading  #{EFE&HRE 2
investments B#EEE - (3,497) (3,497)
Fair value loss on investment WEWEL
properties NEEEE (79,700) - (79,700)
Segment assets and liabilities (c) PHMEERARE

As the CODM reviews the Group's assets and liabilities as
a whole on a consolidated basis and assets or liabilities
are not allocated to the operating segments, therefore no
analysis of segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue is solely generated from, and non-
current assets are located in, Hong Kong, based on the
location on relevant entities’ operation.

(d)

HREFEZERARERGEEE
EHASEBEEEERAE &
EXBEIRDIEEZLZEDE
At AEEIDLEERAE
Z A e

HEmEER
RENEER QLI A&
ErhHEREES AERD
BEMNEE -

EREREBRERAT
TR CCZFFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEPEE (&)
(e) Information about major customers () FEEFEH
Revenue from three customer (2022: two customer) ARG A = B B U a8 10% 2
individually contributing over 10% of total revenue of the ZHREP(CZE_F ZEEP)
Group is as follows: ZWEIT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B FIT
Customer A EPA N/A!
(from property investment segment) CRBMEREDEL) 1,486 @A
Customer B %FB N/A
(from property investment segment) CRBMEIREDEL) FEA 2,880
Customer C BFC N/A"
(from property investment segment) CRBMEIREDEL) FERA 720
Customer D BFD N/AT
(from property investment segment) CRBMEREDEL) 2,100 NEA
Customer E ®PE N/A!
(from property investment segment) CRBMEIREDEL) 2,975 @A
1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of ! HENZTEERMBEBAEER
the Group's total revenue in the respective year. HEREFE 2 B 10% °
7. REVENUE 7. Wz
Revenue includes property rental income in both years. The W e ERBEEE S MERS KA - &
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised NORRALEAERKSSE|NT

during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
—EB-=fF —EFE -
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB FIT
Gross rental income from REMEMHES WAL
investment properties 9,256 4,696
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfbs=
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Included in other income are: ETAEMKEA
Interest income from a corporate bond TEEHZ2FBMA 45 90
Government subsidies (note) B A ah (T #E) = 98
Sundry income MIEUMA 44 17
89 205
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2023, no government subsidies M BEZZE=F+-A=+—HILEEE "
(2022: HK$98,000) was granted under Employment Support Scheme MERBEABRNHENEESE T2
which aims to retain employment under the Anti-epidemic Fund of RAEEFEFMELEERBES 2B
the Hong Kong Government. AL (ZZ =4 : B¥98,0007T) °
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 9. HttBAREEFHE
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBEFT BB F T
Unrealised fair value gain/(loss) on BIEEEREZ
held-for-trading Investments KEEAFERE
(B8E) 3,180 (1,350)
Realised loss on held-for-trading investments ~ H{EFE &R &~
B #IREE - (3,497)
Fair value loss on investment properties KEWMEZ AN EEE (86,300) (79,700)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEN B R Rz W
(M 5E36) - 17
(83,120) (84,530)

BRERBEBRERD T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BA#E A
2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Interest on other loans HiEHFE 2,295 110
Interest on bank borrowing RITEEFE 23,354 10,355
Interest on promissory note BB E = 1,903
Interest on loan from a non-controlling interest  3E42 A% 7 25 & 70 F 5 15,150 8,130
40,799 20,498
11. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 11. BREFEHAIEE
Loss before income tax has been arrived at after charging: BRETISTIRTEEE MR THIEE -
2023 2022
—ECZ=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Auditor's remuneration (including ZEEN B (B IEZ
remuneration for non-audit services) Bk 7% 2 M) 600 560
Bad debt written off (note) AR (B 5E) 169 -
Depreciation charge wELH
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - BE LK 394 459
Operating lease rental in respect of REBEHENNERME
low valued leased office equipment KEHEERS 21 15
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group terminated a M :BE—T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE "
rental contract with a tenant due to long outstanding rental payment. ARRBHERAES AEEHEAPKILE
The Group incurred a bad debt amounting to HK$169,000 after My - mERAAFRIIMNASIZESE -
considering the rental deposit received from the tenant. AR B E A RS 169,000 7T °
100  FAREAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FREBIFAX
2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
The income tax expense comprises: St e :
Current tax: BIHARR 18
— Hong Kong profits tax — BBENE 89 -
— Under-provision in respect — ERFERE
of prior year e 356 233
Total tax charge for the year REEHIAT L% 445 233
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimate BERENEHBRBEZMEFE 2 AEHER
assessable profits for both years. TR FIZ 16.5% B Rt & -
The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax under the two- REBEFESHRES  AEBAZNES
tiered profits tax rates regime. For the years ended 31 AER - BT _=Fr_FT_—
December 2023 and 2022, the first HK$2 million of profits of +TZA=+—RHLFE £BEREEE
qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits V& # 2,000,000 7T & F1) #9 B % £8.25% -
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group M 8 3@ ¥ 5 2,000,000 7T % Al 89 Fi = A&
entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits 16.5% ° N EMEHMREERNE
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% BEBEEENENGEER165%(ZF
(2022: 16.5%). TZF 1 16.5%) M B — TR BMTLIE -

BRERBEBRERD T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

FRri&®iR < (4)

FRAMBRAX TSGR R R EME
T Wz % P EURR PRSI A B IR BRI T

102

loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income is as follows:

2023 2022
—ECZ=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Loss before income tax bR TSR AT ES 1B (122,137) (107,747)
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax A FT 1S 51 K 16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (note) —E T 165%)
T8 BIE (ME) (20,153) (17,778)
Tax effect of losses and expenses TAMBBERRASZ 2
not deductible for tax purposes MIEEE 14,478 15,764
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BARR W= 2 BB 2
for tax purposes (691) 47)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERHIEEEZ
MIEZE 6,988 2,433
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATHRERETE 2
difference not recognised MIETE (327) (340)
Utilisation of tax losses previously A LRI ARER T IEE R
not recognised (117) (32)
Tax at concessionary rate REBEREFTE 2HIE (89) -
Under-provision in respect of prior year ERIFERETRE 356 233
Income tax expense Frigfif = 445 233

Note: The domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of the

Group is substantially based is used (which is the Hong Kong Profits

Tax rate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS 13. EEHE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight Directors ENSENNEES (T - —F: X
(2022: six Directors), disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules ZEE)EE e BE FTHEBEE
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows: BATEDIIEENOT -
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-—E-—=f+-B=+—HiLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments

FER EAREAN
e Hnig TR MeBm
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Eric Todd (note (g)) ERIZEE (EQ) 600 - 18 618
Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho (note (¢)) 7 Y38 55 4 (K EE(c)) 32 113 3 148
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (note () SR eFgst & (Mi5E(0) - 317 16 333
Mr. Zhu Wei Wen REXEE

(note (d), (g) (PH3E() ~ (@) 188 - - 188

Independent Non-Executive By F#HTES

Directors
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny TR TE 101 - - 101
(note (e)) (P3E(e))
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick BRESLE 216 - - 216
Mr. Lam Wai Hung (note (b)) R ST (BTEE (D) 216 - - 216
Mr. Lam Cheung Shing, Richard  #f& % 564 (5 ()
(note () 27 = = 27

1,380 430 37 1,847

ERZREBRERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

13. EEME ()
BE-E-_—_F+-A=+—HLEFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contributions  emoluments
ek RIRER
e H {18 7 BEaT & 4058
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BT T

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Eric Todd EREESE 600 - 18 618

Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho (note (¢)) Y48 5% & (MiFE(C) 240 910 18 1,168

Independent Non-Executive MBI FEHITES

Directors
Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny TR STE 216 - - 216
(note (e)) (FiFEE(e)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick ERERE 216 - - 216

Ms. Kwan Shan (note (a)) ML+ (M) 162 - - 162

Mr. Lam Wai Hung (note (b)) IR T E (FFFE D) 54 - - 54

1,488 910 36 2,434

Notes: B & -

(a) Ms. Kwan Shan has resigned from the position as an independent (a) BLZTER-_E-_—_FhLhA=1+HE%
non-executive director on 30 September 2022. BT IENITE RS -

(b) Mr. Lam Wai Hung has been appointed as an independent non- (b) HEHEEFECR_E-__FNLA=1+H
executive director on 30 September 2022. BERERBILIFRITES -

(c) Mr. Sheung Kwong Cho has resigned from the position as an (c) BXEEFEE R E_=F_A++H
executive director and Mr. Cheung Sze Ming has been appointed as BENTESTRE  MRSHFLEENRD
an executive director on 17 February 2023. REABEZTEANITES -

(d) Mr. Zhu Weiwen has been appointed as an executive director on 20 (d) KEXGEEER-_E-_=F=A=-+H
March 2023. EZEABITES -

e Mr. Wong Kui Shing, Danny has resigned from the position as an (e) FEKELEER-_ZE-_=F,A+hB
independent non-executive director on 19 Jjune 2023. BB IERITEER -

0} Mr. Lam Cheung shing, Richard has been appointed as an ) MEBRLEER -_E-_=F+—F++
independent non-executive director on 17 November 2023. HEZERBIFNTES -

(4] Mr. Eric Todd has resigned from the position as an executive director @ EREEADR S -_ME-_A=-+H

and Mr. Zhu Weiwen has been re-designated from executive director
to non-executive director on 29 February 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were paid
for their services in connection with the management of the
Group's affairs. The independent non-executive Directors’
emoluments shown above were paid for their services as
directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. No
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the Directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

13. EEME @
ERRTEEZHMERRERSAREZ
EHERREREM A o LA BT
HTESCMERRFRIARRES
YR S AR 75 1 SZAS -

RAFE  YEEIAZEEREXREN
REAF N 2 2 - A& B ER T
BRI IR ANK AN B AN B 2 B
SBERAH(E

14. EMPLOYEE COSTS 14. EERZA
2023 2022
:S: = —_=__
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B F T
Employee costs (including directors’ EERA(BEESHE
emoluments (note 13)) comprise (M3E13)) BIELA T &8
Wages and salaries ITENEH 2,407 2,949
Retirement benefit scheme contributions (note) R RIEHNEH 214 3% (FH3T) 59 58
2,466 3,007
Note:  The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ek AEBRESBCRFIEATEESTEIF

(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong SAR. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at the
lower of 5% of the employees’ relevant income or HK$1,500 each
month. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contribution have been paid.

Assets of the MPF Scheme is held separately from those of the
Group and are independently administered and are not included in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group's contributions to the MPF Scheme vest fully and
immediately with the employees. Accordingly, there are no
forfeited contributions under the MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce its existing level of contributions or
contributions payable in future years as at and during each of the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

P RRERFITREAEEENR
BREEBRZBHMERABEESE ([wE
EFtE]) - BESFE A -ARBE LT
AR ERHRTORIRG B - RigE
Heitd BEXRhHEEBSEHARE
BH BN 5% 3T AE# 1,500 7T (JA
BIE & R2E) A % AT BIE KA AR - RHE
HERE - NEEWEE — SNRET

BRETFENEERARBAMEED
FE B EE  WE AGEYH
ARRERA

AEB BB EINEREAR 225
BREE At REE-T-=FK
ZEFF+ A=+ —HLEFEUR
EZFHHE BEREREsENE
SRR AT B AN E B AEIIRE IR A #
FOKF BRI E )RR R
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #H %=

— =

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2022: four) were Directors of the Company whose
emoluments are set out in note 13 above. The emolument of

=EFTA=T—HILLFE

15.

AEBREHFMAL

AEBRAERSFMALH mE (=
T__F :MOR)/REARTESE RE
ZEHBE R X3 R — & (=

the remaining one (2022: one) highest paid individual was as T F B &P AT 2
follows: PN
2023 2022
—Egq2-= —E- -

HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other benefits FehHEHMmEF 520 221
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRURREFET B X 18 9
538 230

The emolument was within the following band:

MENnF 545

2023 2022
—E-= —_=_—
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AZ A&
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z = 7 ¥ 1,000,000 7T 1 1

No emolument was paid by the Group to any non-director
highest paid individual as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office in the current

and prior years.

16. DIVIDENDS

16.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting

period (2022: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

17. BREE
AABELAEETREREIEIRT

17. LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

PIBEA S

2023 2022
—EB-=fF g
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT
Loss for the year attributable to owners N/NSIE DN el
of the Company RFEEEE (72,851) (68,799)
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Number of Number
shares of shares
R #E RiZEH
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FILAGtE SRR EAREIE 2
for the purpose of basic loss per share TR ke 9 E 1,089,118,593  1,089,118,593
2023 2022
—E-= —E -
HK cents HK cents
B BN
Basic loss per share FREXREE (6.69) 6.32)

RAEHE—_E_=FR_ZT -
T+ A=+ BHLFEZEREEES
ME AR EETEN 2 EEL B
B - HORBIEL TR -

For the purpose of calculating diluted loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no adjustment has
been made as there was no potential ordinary share
outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HE_—_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWZE
2023 2022
:E: = —_=__
HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
FAIR VALUE ~NFE
At 1 January (level 3 recurring fair value) R—A—B(E=#H
KEERTE) 1,418,100 1,497,800
Fair value changes recognised in RIBRERZ A THEEZS
profit and loss (86,300) (79,700)
At 31 December R+=—H="+—
(level 3 recurring fair value) =T \‘E" 1,331,800 1,418,100

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn property rental income or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 have been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer who holds a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the location and category of the
investment property being valued. The valuation technigue is
market comparison method based on the market observable
transactions of similar properties and adjusted to reflect the
conditions and locations of the subject properties. There are
no change to the valuation technique as compared with 31
December 2022.

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2023

AEEMARELCEHER G UURRY
%Tﬁiqﬁ)\iﬁaii'ﬁzft%%%# 1

NEEBAGTE  THERAKRAR
ﬁ%%

KREBREWEN T -_=FK_F
T AT —HAZAFEERSE
jéﬁ%?%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@

REIFEHEST - #5EBRTEER

RAVEERANMBEEEER  TET
BEHEEEYE W NRERETHEZ
KB o MEAEAEMBLLEE RN
P2 IBEMSR A B EH TR
R B EZE AR RS - BB F
::¢+_HE+—EI$Ett AE{ETT A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. REWE (&)

The fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring
fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and
closing fair value balance is disclosed above.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The fair value as at the end of the reporting period is
determined using direct comparison approach by reference to
market price of comparable properties in their respective
existing states and uses on the market basis assuming sale
with immediate vacant possession and by making reference to
comparable sales evidence, adjusted for a premium or a
discount specific to the quality of the Group’s properties
compared to the recent sales.

Higher premiums or discounts for differences in the quality and
characteristics of the Group’s properties and the comparable
properties would result in correspondingly higher or lower fair
value measurement.

In estimating the fair values of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

RENMEZ ATERESMEHEEAT
B3 - B REBRA T AR S HE
R XRE -

BE -2 -_=FKk=-_FT-_—_F+=A
T+ —HIEFE BESARENE =
& o

RIBERRAFEDEBEELBEE
o ERKSEAELBYMERERR
BERRERE T RRTSEREELZ
mE BRYEAJIRIELE  I2
ZAALERIHERE  AESAKEY
XEEZHEnENTE (BRI HHE
RHUBME) LR -

AEBEMERTELEMELE LT
EEMELARSEEXTESEUAT
Bt ERRIB IR D
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation technigues and inputs used).

18. REWE ()

TERFIMMEERXSHENERTE
ZER - LEMAMBEERBAZRE -

Fair value
Properties as at Valuation Range of
and location 31December 2023 Level techniques Unobhservable inputs unobservable inputs
R-BZ=f
t=A=t-H
MERNLE ZAVE SR fERE THEERAYE THEERAEEE
HK$'000
BEFT
Industrial property 7,100 3 Market Comparison  Premium or discount for quality ~ -11.9% t0 0.3%
situated in Hong Kong (2022: 6,100) Approach of properties (e.g. view, level (2022:-43.3% t0 -29.1%)
and condition of the industrial
property)
fURBEBz IEME 7,100 THLEE MEEE 2 HESIE -11.9% % 0.3%
(Z%=z (WIEWERE  BERMAR) (ZB-—F:-433%
6,100) £-291%)
Office buildings situated 94,700 3 Market Comparison  Premium or discount for quality ~ -12.4%t0 11.0%
in Hong Kong (2022: 102,000) Approach of properties (e.g. view, level (2022:-13.6% 10 4.3%)
and condition of the office
building)
URNEBZRDEET 94,700 THLEE MEEE L HESIE 124% % 11.0%
(Z%=z= (INEAZRTRE  BERMR) (ZTZZF -136%
102,000) Z43%)
Commercial property 1,230,000 3 Market Comparison  Premium or discount for quality — -20.3% t0 -14.6%
situated in Hong Kong (2022:1,310,000) Approach of properties (e.g. view, level (2022: -25.3% 10 -11.9%)
and condition of the
commercial property)
URBEBZEENE 1,230,00 TELEE NEEERBINE 203%Z-14.6%
(Z2z=%: (MEEmESE BERKR) (ZEZ2%F:253%
1,310,000) Z-119%)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

One of the key inputs used in the valuations of investment
properties is the sales prices of properties nearby the Group's
investment properties, which ranged from HK$5,064/sq. ft. to
HK$51,594/sq. ft. (2022: HK$4,351/sq. ft. to HK$54,950/sq. ft.)
where sg. ft. is a common unit of area used in Hong Kong. A
decrease in the sales prices would result in a decrease in fair
value measurement of the investment properties, and vice

18. BEWHE (®)

AN EYEETHERRAZES—IB
FEHABBREAEEREYEMBLY
¥E2EEB NTFEFHRBS064TT
EEFEHRBESSMT(Z -

FBEHREEIBITEFFEHFRBE
549507T)  FEFREBAFERACHEIE
BA-EEBTHREBBIREME AT

versa. The carrying amounts of investment properties shown BEtERD  RZIMA - DR EME
above comprise: ZIREERE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETFT BT T
Investment properties located in URBB2IREYE
Hong Kong 1,331,800 1,418,100
As at 31 December 2023, an investment property with carrying RZZTZ=F+ZA=+—H ' —ERE

amount of HK$1,230,000,000 (2022: HK$1,310,000,000) has
been pledged to secure a bank borrowing of the Group (note
27).

As at 31 December 2023, an investment property with carrying
amount of HK$94,700,000 (2022: HK$102,000,000) and buildings
held for own use with carrying amount of HK$16,270,000 (2022:
HK$16,664,000) have been pledged to secure a mortgage loan
facility amounting to HK$70,000,000 (2022: HK$70,000,000). As
at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had not utilised the
facility.

T 18 74 7% #1,230,000,000 T (ZE ==
£ #51,310,000,000 7T ) 2 & W) &
DEREAREEIRITEE 2 HE R (F
27) o

RZEZ=F+=-RA=+—H ' —HEkK
{8 A8 194,700,000 T (Z T = —

75 #102,000,00070) 2R EMELEE
BEAEE16,270000 L (ZE - —4F : /&
#16,664,0007T) 2 ¥ 1EE A ZEFE
B E &R 1E E 5 R B 75 % 70,000,000
gL (—F = — 4 : 75 %70,000,0007T) Z
BEHR R E_=FN_FT__F
+ZA=+—H8 AEETESHHZR
;éo
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For the year ended 31 December2023 HE_—_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. V¥ BERZE

Lifts,
Buildings electrical
held for and office Motor
own use equipment vehicles Total
FREH
BHEER EEBR
ZEF BAERE AE “m
(note a)
(HzFa)
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BETFT BT BEFT
Cost R
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—H—H 17,700 213 330 18,243
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBATF - - (330) (330)
At 31 December 2022, RZEZZ§+ZA=1+—H"
1 January 2023 and TZF-A—-Bk
31 December 2023 =F+-A=+—H 17,700 213 - 17,913
Accumulated depreciation i‘ﬂﬁ%
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_%—H—H 643 213 99 955
Provided for the year ZWF B 393 - 66 459
Elimination on disposal of i E B 2 B B 38
subsidiaries - - (165) (165)
At 31 December 2022 and RZE-—F+-A=+—-BE
1 January 2023 “E-=F—A—H 1,036 213 - 1,249
Provided for the year KEERE 394 - - 394
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+ZA=+—H 1,430 213 - 1,643
Net book value BREFE
At 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=4%+ZA=1—H 16,270 - - 16,270
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+-_H=+—H 16,664 - - 16,664
Note: BeE
(@  As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group’s (a) R—_BE-_=ZF+-_A=+—HBEK=F

ZZFEFZRAR=+—H AEEBES
BZEFEREANEL W REFZA
EEERD WM EI8HM R=F
Z=HF+ZA=+—RH A£EEFEAR
BrzEFEERERRBENRE 2K
ﬂiuu"

buildings held for own use represents the ownership interest in
leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group's building held for own use has been pledged to secure a
mortgage loan facility as mentioned in Note 18.

1 1 2 FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

21.

20. CORPORATE BOND 20. EEF
As at 31 December 2023, the Group held an unsecured RZE-_=ZF+=-A=+—80 ' ' &x%E
corporate bond with a balance of HK$600,000 (2022: BE®BTERABK600,000T (==
HK$600,000), carrying interest at the rate of 15% per annum, F B 600,000T) 2 EERCEE
which is paid in cash quarterly. The issuer has further modified %5 REEFIRFNE15%E BAERK
and extended the maturity date from June 2023 to June 2024 FTENRESIMN - BITAERERNE—
during the year (2022: from May 2022 to June 2023). The FEFTREA BT =FNAER
balance was classified as current asset as at 31 December EZENFARA(ZEZZ2F A
2023 and 2022. T _FRARBE_FT_=F/NAH)°
BRERN_ T =FR_FT__F+_H
=t—HOEARBEE -
On initial recognition and subsequent measurements, the RO HERREGTER  EERAD
Directors consider that the principal amount of corporate bond XEHFASEEENFTEMESE °
approximate its fair value.
HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 21. HFEEERE
2023 2022
—E-=F —EFE- =
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BB F T
Listed equity securities: ERAES
Hong Kong BH 4,740 1,560

As at 31 December 2023, held-for-trading investments
represent 1 (2022: 1) equity securities listed in the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The fair values of held-for-trading investments have been
determined by reference to the quoted market prices available
on the Stock Exchange.

R-F-_=F+-A=1+—08 #FE

i&éhﬂﬂ:?:—i 11H) RE
5%@@%%%&?&27@ BT ]) 4R

J:FHZHXZ'XM

FIFEBEREZRAVFEIDZEB M
BHERETE

EREREBRERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

22. RENTAL AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EWHE R HthEWRRIE
The Group does not have any credit period to the tenants AEBVEGTHPERNERER(ZE
(2022: Nil). ZTF ) o
2023 2022
—EB-=fF —EF -
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T

Rental receivables — current and not FEWFE & — BNER R R (E

impaired - 1,432
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE - Ze &
receivables H A fE W IR 801 762
At 31 December R+=ZHA=+—H 801 2,194
The aging analysis of debtors, based on invoice date, were as REEAMGERKERZER DTN
follows: T
2023 2022
:g: = —_=__
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
1to 30 days 1£230H - 259
31 to 60 days 31E£60H - 259
6110 90 days 61290 H - 307
91 to 180 days 91E180H - 607
Total rental receivables FEUTE £ 4258 - 1,432
Details of other receivables net of loss allowance are as H b e SRIE (FBR BB R 2 5B
follows: T:
2023 2022
:E: = = __
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deposits e 671 710
Prepayments e FIE 76 48
Others HA 54 4
801 762

1 1 4 FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

23.

24.

25.

26.

DEPOSITS HELD IN A FINANCIAL INSTITUTION/ 23. R—BE¢REEBEE2EZR 8
BANK BALANCES AND CASH THERRS
Deposits held in a financial institution/bank balance carry R—EEeRBERZEZERRITET
interest at market rates which ranged from 0.001% to 0.88% N TF0.001%E0.88% (—F — —
(2022: 0.001% to 1.1%) per annum. The deposits held in a 0.001%E1.1%) 2 T HFFEFFE o I
financial institution are related to the securities trading —HeREERE 2R A KRBT
accounts maintained by the Group. BHEERFEHE -
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HttERREREFTER
2023 2022
—E_=F —E- =
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BEEFIT
Rental deposits received Bl iEe 3,445 2,717
Other payables and accruals HEfb M IE R ERTE A 2,048 2,385
Interest payable on loan from a non- JEER R ER N EMER Y
controlling interest and other loans JE AT FIE 21,173 5,376
26,666 10,478

AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amount due to a non-
controlling interest represented the loan from shareholder of a
non-wholly owned subsidiary which is unsecured, interest-free,
and repayable on demand.

DEFERRED TAX

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$411,326,000 (2022: HK$369,684,000) available for
offset against future profits, which are subject to the
agreement of the relevant tax authorities. No deferred tax
asset in respect of the tax losses was recognised as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all the tax
losses maybe carried forward indefinitely.

25.

26.

FE 15 I #5225 FRIE
RZEZ=FR_F-_—_F+=A
—+—H - EMIEERERREEIES
BEERE B8

+
EMBARIRRER
RABEREE -

EERIE

RIFER  AEBBRBEAREEIE
EH411,326000C (Z T —F B
369,684,000 7T) 7] 4 3K $8 K A w F 0 M
BAESHBEHEHREANRAE RNZ2F
TEFRZFZZF+ZA=+—H¥
ERREEERRECHBEE  RA
B AR R R R EATER c KT ==
ER_E-_—_F+-_A=+—H0 A
TRIBES B AT AR B4 82 -

ERZREBRERAE
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e TR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

27. BANK BORROWING 27. RITEE
2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BEFIT
Current TRED
Bank borrowing due for repayment R—FRNEHEEZRITEE
within one year (note (i) (BFRE)) 20,528 20,528
Bank borrowing due for repayment after A —F R EIHEE W H G IHZEK
one year which contain a repaymenton & ZUE 2 SRITEE (M1 ()
demand clause (note (i) & note (if)) B = (i) 390,023 410,551
410,551 431,079
Notes: B aE -
0) The bank borrowing is secured by an investment property (note 18) 0] WITEEN—BHEEBEAENK
at the carrying value of HK$1,230,000,000 (2022: HK$1,310,000,000). 1,230,000,0007c (Z T = Z_F : F &
1,310,000,00070) 2 #&% & ¥ % (M s£18) 1
HH o
(i) The bank borrowing of HK$390,023,000 as at 31 December 2023 iy MZZE-_=F+-_A=+—HZRTE
(2022: HK$410,551,000) is not scheduled to repay within one year. It BB 1390,023,000 0 (ZE = Z4F : B
is classified as current liability as the related loan agreement 410,551,000 7T) 3 & 5 8 — F R EE -
contains a clause that provides the lender with an unconditional HREEERBZHE BRI TE &
right to demand repayment at any time at its own discretion. None IR EFIBERSBIEERER - MR
of the portion of the bank loan due for repayment after one year TEESBEARDEE -HER—F&
which contain a repayment on demand clause (and therefore B B8 18 0 # A 1R B SRO& R S R AP
classified as current liability) is expected to be settled within one BER—FRENEmMSBEARDERZ
year. RITER -
At the end of the reporting period, bank borrowing was REEBR - RITEEBIRA T EE
scheduled to repay as follows: iz
2023 2022
—E-= —ET-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BEFIT
On demand or within one year RERN—FA 20,528 20,528
More than one year, but not exceeding ~ —&F A _E{E BB F
two years 20,528 20,528
More than two year, but not exceeding ~ WA F{E R BBRF
five years 61,583 61,583
After five years AF% 307,912 328,440
410,551 431,079
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December2023 #HE—_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

27. BANK BORROWING (continued) 27. $RITEBE (®)
The amount due is based on the scheduled repayment date in FE AT SRAE 31155 Fﬁ%ﬁﬁrﬁi%ﬂ HE A
the loan agreement and ignore the effect of any repayment on EE . WEA REMEEREREXZ
demand clause. FE -
28. LOAN FROM A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 28. FIERERER
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has an unsecured loan RZTEZ=F+_A=+—H £&KH
from a non-controlling interest of HK$152,700,000 (2022: L EEFIFERETERBE
HK$152,700,000) bearing interest at a fixed rate of 10% 152,700,000 (Z = ZF : B #
(2022: 7%) per annum and will be matured on 30 April 2024. 152,700,000 70) L BT FF & 10% (= F
CF TR YRR T _MEF
MA=1+HEIH-
29. OTHER LOANS 29. HhEX
As at 31 December 2023, the Group has an unsecured loans of R-ZF-_=F+-A=1+—0 A%KH
HK$24,600,000, HK$2,000,000, HK$600,000 (2022: Z B E 50 24,600,000 7T © B
HK$4,000,000) bearing interest at a fixed rate of 15% (2022: 2,000,000 * & ¥ 600,000t (Z T ==
12%) per annum and will be matured on 7 October 2024, 11 & ¥ 4,000,000 7T) ¥ @ E F F K
November 2024, 11 November 2024 respectively (2022: 10 5% (ZBE-ZF :12%) 2 WD
October 2023). RN T _MFE+A+EH ZZZM4F

+—A+—R —E-_mHFE+—A+—
A(ZE-—F: ==+ A+H)

FIHF -
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. 7=
Number of shares Share capital
B2 EHES
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F —E-=F ZZE-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T BB F T
Issued and fully paid: B 217 M8 ¢
At 1 January and R—A—B X
31 December +=-—A=+—H 1,089,118,593  1,089,118,593 632,610 632,610

BRERBEBRERD T
—EZFFR 117
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

31. RESERVES 31. #E
(a) The Group (@ #*KE
Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set TEERFREEDFBENGREE
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. =B R FHBEEAERZAS
The following describes the nature and purpose of each EHFHE s MERREERET

reserve within owners’ equity:

Reserves Description and purpose
& HERAR

Properties revaluation reserve Gains/losses arising on the revaluation of property (other than investment
properties). The balance on this reserve is wholly undistributable.

MEEEFEE REGEMEREMERINMELEZ K BB - REBBEH2E
BHAA DK °

Retained earnings/ Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.
Accumulated losses
REAF,REEE MIBmER 2 Ret e R B8 F5E -
(b) The Company (b) Z&=2H]
Retained
earnings
REEF
HK$'000
BB FIT
At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—_%—H—H 118,504
Loss for the year REEEE (11,547)
At 31 December 2022 (note 40) REZBZZHF+=ZA=+—HB (K3 40) 106,957
Loss for the year NEFEEE (19,032)
At 31 December 2023 (note 40) R-ZEBE-=%+=H=+—H (Hz£40) 87,925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. @I A
(@) Categories of financial instruments (@ =MIAEHR
2023 2022
—E-=F g
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Financial assets cRMEE
Fair value through profit and loss BAFEFTABR
("FVTPL") (MEAFEFAEBRE] 4,740 1,560
Financial assets at amortised cost REHENAT Rz 2R EE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREBEeMRESEED) 2,996 3,540
Financial liabilities EA ==
Amortised cost AR 661,537 624,694
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) cRIEKEEEEREE
policies
Details of the Group's financial instruments are disclosed AEBEeMIAECFBEREM
in respective notes. The risks associated with these HETRE -ZEFeRmIAEERE R
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate be R IE T 5 AR (F) K & b R EE
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The )  EERRERBEZR
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. o BRAREZE R 2 BURH
Management manages and monitors these exposures to M T -BEEEERERZSE
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a [2 B - B AR & BB B ERERGE &
timely and effective manner. B o

BRERBEBRERD T
—EZFFR 119



120

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b TR

For the year ended 31 December2023 HE_—_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. €eMI AW
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) REKEEBZERBER(E)
policies (continued)
Market risk ™ 3% Bk
() Interest rate risk 0 FEERE

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as group
entities deposit cash at banks and borrow funds at
floating interest rates. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise. Balances included

HRNEEERERSHFAR
TWLZEE R REBAES -

REBEEEFERR - &
E.fﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ <3 b
BE-RAm EREELEH
iﬁwﬁ ' ﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬁ%gﬁ%
EE R ERF E R - F &

in interest rate analysis as follows: DB EEHRIT

2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E -
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYETFT BT T
Deposits held in a financial R—HEEREERE

institution (note 23) ZFER(PFEE23) 1 32
Bank balances and cash (note 23) RITET MRS (M15E23) 1,670 762
Bank borrowing (note 27) RITEE (3E27) (410,551) (431,079)

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the loss after tax in response to
reasonably possible changes in an interest rate to
which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period. In determining the
effect on loss after tax for the next reporting date,
management assumes that the change in interest
rate had occurred at that date and all other
variables remain constant. There is no change in
the methods and assumptions used in 2022.

TRERBEHRBRR %
EEEAEEATEARR
ZHEEEAREF MR
ZIHEEH EETH T —

WEBBZBRBIEEBIEME
W%ﬂ CEIRE R R

EF*EE&%&%EE
WT%IﬁﬁhK“o
::E%%%E&&%&I
] o

2023 2022
ZEZE —_=__
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) on (decrease) on
loss after tax loss after tax

BRERERER BRI B 1R
@ Rd) B Ofd)

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate  &/& R 17 R 2 I R =
— Increase by 100 basis points — FF 100 @ & 24 3,411 3,593
— Decrease by 100 basis points — TN P& 100 & Z 24 (3,411) (3,593)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group engaged in short-term securities
investment and is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities.
The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity instruments quoted on the Stock
Exchange. Management manages the exposure to
price risk by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks and return profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective held-for-trading
investments had been 10% (2022: 10%) higher/
lower, the post-tax loss of the Group for the year
would decrease/increase by HK$396,000 (2022: the
post-tax loss of the Group would decrease/increase
by HK$130,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments.

32. EM I A
(b) £REKREEBZERBER(E)

mSEE (E)
(i 1B

AEBREENIFRESR
%o BEH EMRAESZ
KRERBRAERER - K
SERAERAREIZES
REERFT R 2 e T A -
BEEEDBRETRRR K
Bl AN < RE A A EEZ
FERRER

BN E 2T
AT BRE D iIRBRE R
ZEABREARETE °

WEBRFIEEBREEK L
Ft/TREE10% (- F = —4F
10%) * NEBARFERTIE
BB R D g
396,0007C (—ZE = —4F : K
EEBFEEERGRD, 1T
hnis 130,000 7T) - AR
HIEEBERE 2 N EZS) -

EREREBRERAT
TR CCZFFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 32. eI AWM

122

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long term strategic purposes. Given their high
credit standing, management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on
rental receivables from a few tenants. The management
of the Group mainly considers the tenants’ repayment
history and financial position. The Group measures loss
allowances for rental receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is assessed on an individual debtor
basis.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the management of
the Group assessed that the credit loss for rental
receivables (note 22) was minimal and no allowance was
provided under lifetime ECLS" method.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents and working capital deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows and
working capital. Management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) ¢REKRTEEHERBEE (B)
policies (continued)
Credit risk FE R
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32. EM I A
(b) E@EME

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The contractual maturities of financial liabilities of the
Group are shown as below:

EEEREE @)

REBESER(E)
AEEERABEIAHBMRINT

Total More than
contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
RHEE ERRER —£R —EHt
ReREHAE HEREX BEREBME
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
As at 31 December 2023 H=-ZB==f
+ZA=+-
Non-derivatives HTHETA
Other payables and Hib BN FIER 26,666 26,666 26,666 -
accruals At ER
Borrowings (note) & (M) 410,551 410,551 410,551 -
Amount due to & HiH iR 44,420 44,420 44,420 -
non-controlling interest A
Loan from non-controlling 3H RIERER 152,700 158,443 158,443 -
interest
Other loans HEtER 27,200 30,700 30,700 -
661,537 670,780 670,780 -
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-Zf
TZA=t+-
Non-derivatives FTETA
Other payables and accruals — EHafE *JX B & 10,478 10,478 10,478 -
BB
Borrowings (note) 1“ GES) 431,079 431,079 431,079 -
Amount due to HiH eida 26,437 26,437 26,437 -
non-controlling interest
Loan from non-controlling 3H Hﬂfiﬁﬁ‘% 152,700 155,460 155,460 -
interest
Other loans HER 4,000 4,370 4,370 -
624,694 627,824 627,824 -
Note: B st -

As explained in note 27, bank borrowing of HK$410,551,000 with
repayment of demand clause which give the bank an unconditional
right to call the loan at any time is classified under current liabilities

AN FE27 BTl - B 1R B RE RUEX
B FRITEKGENBERERIERZR
1716 B8 ¥ 410,551,000 7T A 4R A BF 75 AR

in the consolidated statement of financial position (2022: MESEARHAB(ZE - —F  AK
HK$431,079,000). 431,079,0007T) °
BERERBEBRERAR 123
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
However, management considers that the possibility of
such clause being executed by bank is remote and
expects such term loans would be repaid in accordance
with the agreed repayment schedule based on
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the reporting date). The expected
repayment schedule of the Group’s bank borrowing is
shown as below:

32. eI A

TREAREE B ERBER(B)

FREBESEE (&)

A BERERBRITINITEH
{630 2 AT g M A - B - A0 78 HA
ZETEHEFERIBE T ENE
MRIZAMBRSREMEIE (BIE
KAAOFEIFEF R (LR s
AEZERMANE)FEZMEN
;) o AEBIRITEE 2 EHER
FrfERT ¢

2023 2022
—E—-= —E-—

HK$000 HK$'000

BEFT BEFIT

On demand or within one year BERKF—FNR 43,444 30,689
More than one year, —FUA L ENEAMF

but not exceeding two years 43,444 30,689
More than two years, MEN EBETBRAF

but not exceeding five years 130,330 92,065

After five years hFE 695,092 521,701

912,310 675,144

(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c) M IAEQAFEFE
instruments

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis
Some of the Group's financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial instruments
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technigues and inputs used), as well as the level of
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

32. EM I A

(c) EMIAEAQAFEFTEE)

(i)  Fair value of the Group's financial () HAEELERATETEZ
instruments that are measured at fair value SRMIAEZAFEE)

on a recurring basis (continued)

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those EFE—MAFEFHETD
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in EHREEXEER
active market for identical assets or liabilities; GRS TR R A

BREE

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those EFE_HRANFEFHET
derived from inputs other than quoted prices BRE—MTAZWE
included within Level 1 that are observable S BEEXBERN R
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as #% (BNER) kM #% (B
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); BERITE) BE@A
and HIESE &

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those EFE=HMAFEFHED
derived from valuation techniques that BBETAWIELATE
include inputs for the asset or liability that are RymisHBERER
not based on observable market data JEESBEZHA
(unobservable inputs). R (TR B R A

B ZHERESE -
Fair value Valuation
AVE Fair value  techniques
2023 2022 hierarchy  and key inputs
EEAER
—E-=F —E-CF AFEFR ETERARE
HK$'000 HK$000
BEFT BETFT

Listed equity securities NEABEEE 4,740 1,560 Level 1 Quoted pricesin

in Hong Kong classified as ~ REAZ&EE LT an active market
held-for-trading BRAES
investments

RAFENBEFENSE —
BB oRRFE =Rz ES
AR

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3
in the current and prior years.

ERZREBRERAE
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group's financial
instruments that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis (continued)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities classified
as held-for-trading investments.

(ii) Financial instruments that are recorded at
amortised cost
The Directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objective of managing capital is to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Company only, comprising share
capital and reserves.

The Group considers total equity when reviewing its capital risk
management, which was HK$694,284,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: HK$816,866,000).
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32. eI A

(c) EMIAEQAFEFTEE)
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33. EXERERE
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34. LEASES 34. HE
The Group as lessor AEBEEREEA
The Group's investment properties are leased to a number of AEEZRTRABERRETHEHBRE
tenants for varying terms. The rental income earned during the ME-BE_T-_=F+-_HA=1+—H
year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$9,256,000 (2022: IEFERIZESRA BB 9,256,000
HK$4,696,000). (= =45 B 4,696,0007T) °
The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable operating RETARELCEHE s REEWHES
leases are as follows: N
2023 2022
—E-=F —Eq- =
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BEFIT
Not later than one year —FR 12,136 5,938
Later than one year and not later —FRERFA
than two years 11,195 5,256
Later than two year and not later MFBRERFA
than five years 2,660 8,845
25,991 20,039
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BEARS
Save as those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated BRazSma MR Mk EE
financial statements, the Group had the following related party Oh - REBERFRNEBESBUTEE
transactions with related parties during the year: ARG
(a) Revenue (@ W=
2023 2022
—EC-=& —E-F
Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$°000 HK$000
BEALEE REME BETFT BT
Company with common executive director Rental income 360 -
EBERRAWTES 2 AT AelA
During the year ended 31 December 2023, a director of Bz -_ET-_=F+-_A=+—H
the tenant, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of a ILFE P (B Y miRE
company with its ordinary shares listed on the Stock RETEmH AR (BEEERAR
Exchange, namely Affluent Partners Holdings Limited, RENWHMEEWBRARMESE
has been appointed as an executive director of the BZERRNRBINITES IR
Company. The amount shown is represented the rental cHEANBE-_TE_=F+=A
income contributed in the related investment property T+ —ALEREFERBIRED
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023. EMERMMAS KA -

BRERBEBRERD T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remunerations of Directors and key management of

35. MELXRZ ()
(b) FEEBAEZHME
FARGEHESEREIEEEAR

the Group during the year are as follows: ZES

2023 2022
—EB-=fF g

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Short-term benefits 52 BR4E A 1,810 2,398
Post-employment benefits BB 1212 A 37 36
1,847 2,434

The remunerations of Directors are determined by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 August 2022, the Group disposed of in aggregate of
100% of the equity interests in Far East Holdings China Limited
which directly hold 100% equity shares of Far East Holdings
(Jiangsu) Limited and Far East Technology International Limited
to an independent third party at a total consideration of
HK$40,000. A gain in respect of the disposal amounted to
HK$17,000 (note 9) was recognised in profit or l0ss.

ARrmFMEZEEREESZE
ARBETISBEEERST ZHM -

HEHB A E
R-E-—_FENA=+—8 K£EERA
—RBUFE - EERREEEETE
ERAR (HEERAEERKE L&)
ERAGIRERMEEBER AR 2
100% % 1) & ££100% 2 B i - R (E
A1 A40,0007T - BEEHE EH 2 W=
7B 17,0007T (M 5E9) RIBRTER ©

36.

37. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 37. AMB AR 2%
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: WEBARFFERT
Place of
incorporation
o registration/ Paid up issued Proportion of ownership
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
B VERLY BHRERT
i PEE2: EEnY HRA EAARERARER 2L IEER
Direct Indirect
E# B
2023 2022 2023 2022
“E-cE -“T-o-F CBCCE ZECC
Coast Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Property investment
BREEERAA &k BE100,000 LBk NERE

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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37. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

37. RTB AR zRER (&)
B ARFENT « (8)

=ETA=T—RHLLFE

Place of
incorporation
Or registration/ Paid up issued Proportion of ownership
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital interest held by the Company Principal activities
ERELRER/ EHREES
WEAFER EEHY ERRE RRARERARES ZILH ITEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
2023 200 2023 2022
ZECZE -“EF-CF ZECZE C“ECC
Gold Sky Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Orclinary shares 100% 100% - - Securities investment
ERRERRAT [ BEITERR E5RE
Gold Sky Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$100 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Dormant
5 BEI0TEER TRXH
Gold Sky Property Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Orclinary share 100% 100% - - Property investment
SRNEREARAT &k BB TERR NERE
Joy Ease Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ US$100 Ordlinary shares - - 51% 51%  Property investment
Hong Kong
ABEABE/EE  WETLAR NERE
Joy Wide Limited British Virgin slands/ ~ US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Hong Kong
MERRAD AERGES/EF 1 EnLER RERR
Lead Power Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ US$1 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong
REREARAT ABRSBE/BE  1ETEER RERR
Marvel Star Group Limited British Virgin slands/ ~ US$1 Ordinary share 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Hong Kong
AERGES/EF 1 EnLER RERR
Wings Property Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 Orclinary shares - - 100% 100%  Property investment
[ B0 EARK NERE

* Sino-foreign equity joint venture

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

* FONRAGERT

AR

BEFL BEETANBRRETEM

BT -

ERZREBRERAE
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 38. FEEKERDS
Place of Proportion of ownership
establishment interests and voting
and principal rights held by Loss allocated to
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests Non-controlling interests
B E R FERERRERAR TREFERER
WEARER TEEENY BERREEZLH BB FERER
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZBZzZfF ZZ_C Bz ZZ_C Bz  ZZT_C
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000

V-t EETFT V- EETFT

Joy Ease Limited British Virgin Islands 49% 49% (49,731) (39,181) 345,143 394,874
Joy Ease Limited KERNES

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's BB E EERERNAEEN B
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set NEIZHMBERBEZNAT - T5I8
out below. The summarised financial information below BERBE ¢ IEYRETEBARNF
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations. e 1 8 o
Joy Ease Limited Joy Ease Limited
2023 2022
:S: = —_=__
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT JEEEF T
Current assets MENEE 1,317 4,647
Non-current assets FMBEE 1,230,000 1,310,000
Current liabilities mENa & (526,943) (508,781)
Equity attributable to owners of the RAFHAE NEG#ER
Company 359,231 410,992
Non-controlling interests FEIE i = 345,143 394,874

1 30 FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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38. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 38. FEIERAER ()
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E- =

HK$'000 HK$000
BT B F T
Revenue gz 6,078 2,880
Expenses 3 (107,570) (82,843)

Loss and total comprehensive AEEEENREHEF A5
expense for the year (101,492) (79,963)

Loss and total comprehensive expense AR A AFEGERE &
attributable to owners of the Company FERASERE (51,761) (40,782)

Loss and total comprehensive expense  FEIE IR 25 FE (G 1B

attributable to the non-controlling 2HEMAZ B

interests (49,731) (39,181)
Loss and total comprehensive rFEEBERTERIBEE

expense for the year (101,492) (79,963)
Net cash used in operating activities KL TEBFTAIR ST (7,280) (442)
Net cash from investing activities KREEBFEREFHE 7 -
Net cash from/(used in) BEEBAE

financing activities (FTA)IR&FHE 7,218 (6,896)
Net cash outflow R ML FE (55) (7,338)

BRERBEBRERD T
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39.

NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

39. REBREREBERME

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising

BEEYPERELDMELREREZ

from financing activities: HHR

Interest

payable on

loan from

Loan from Amount anon-

anon- duetonon-  controlling

Promissory Bank  controlling controlling  interest and

note  horrowing interest  Other loans interest  other loans

2R

BEEFR

FER EfiFek HtERZ

RARE RiTRE BREX AER ERTE EfFAE

HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

E¥FT BEFT EETT EETT BETT BET

At 1 January 2022 RZE-_F-F-H 152,700 451,607 - - 14971 -

— Repayment of bank borrowing —BRROEE - (20,528) - - - -

— Repayment of promissory note —ERARZE - - - _ _ _

— Advance from non-controling interest — — JEHRRER R - - - - 11466 -

— Advance from otfer loan —EERER - - - 4,000 - -

— Interest paid —2RHE (1903) (10,359) (2754) (110) - -
Non-cash item: REER

— Interest expense —HERX 1,903 10,355 2754 110 - 5376

— Repayment of promissory note —BRANER (152,700) - 152,700 - - -

At 31 December 2022 R-F--F+-A=1-H - 431,079 152,700 4,000 26437 5376

— Repayment of bank borrowing —BERTRE - (20529) - - - -

— Advance from non-controlling interest — —FEEREZD S - - - - 17,983 -

— Advance from other loans —EREFEN - - - 27,200 - -

— Repayment of other loan —BREMER - - - (4,000) - -

— Interest paid —BRHE - (23354) - (1,648) - -
Non-cash item; FREER

— Interest expense — 8% - 2335 - 1,648 - 15,797

At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-A=1-H - 410,551 152,700 27,200 44420 1173

FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  40. XA Z BBk AT

COMPANY
2023 2022
—_Egq2-= —E -
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRAIZIEE 42,631 42,631
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B N R RUIA 888,706 869,429
931,337 912,060
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b U 38 83 55
Bank balances and cash WITEFRES 1,000 37
1,083 92
current liability REBEE
Other payables and accruals HEib B R ERTE A 22,526 6,928
Amount due to a subsidiary A —EW B A A 9,459 8,957
Loan from a non-controlling interest ~ 3R EZ E X 28 152,700 152,700
Other loans HEiER 29 27,200 4,000
211,885 172,585
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (210,802) (172,493)
Net assets EEFE 720,535 739,567
Capital and reserves R #
Share capital B A 30 632,610 632,610
Reserves {1 31 87,925 106,957
Total equity FERHEE 720,535 739,567

KRR ZMBRARNR -_F_NF=A
“HARAREFSHERBETE I
HINIEERREE

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board on 26 March 2024 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Sze Ming Zhu Weiwen
RS REX
Director Director
X F
EREZERBERERAR 133
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41. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 41. FEHREE
Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group REE-T-_=F+-_A=+—HItF
has obtained the extension of loan from a non-controlling Ek AEEESEEREZERLE
interest to extend the maturity date to 30 April 2025. B -BIHEBERE_ZE_AFNA
=+H-

1 34 FAR EAST HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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FIVE YEAR
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZEZE—ZT=-_=F+_-_HA=+—HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December
HE+t-A=t+-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—ECZE —EC-CE —E-—F —E-% —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFT EETT EETFIT EETFT EEFIT
(Re-presented)  (Re-presented)
(EHET) (E¥Z3)
RESULTS £
Revenue Wiz
— Continuing operations —BELEEY 9,256 4,696 24,825 37,253 39733
— Discontinued operation —BRIEES - - - - 3,555
9,256 4,696 24,825 37,253 43,288
(Loss)/profit before tax BEA(BB)/EH
— Continuing operations —BEORER (122,137) (107,747) (267,499) 59,484 (183,703)
— Discontinued operation —BERIEER - - - 5,045 37473
(122,137) (107,747) (267,499) 64,529 (146,230)
Income tax expense FEHAX (445) (233) ) (1,287) (6,689)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BR)/&H (122,582) (107,980) (267,501) 63,242 (152,919)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(BR)/&H
attributable to: EER:
Owners of the Company ADAIEAA (72,851) (68,799) (240,662) 93,439 (132,314)
Non-controlling interests R (49,731) (39,181) (26,839) (30,197) (20,605)
(122,582) (107,980) (267,501) 63,242 (152,919)
For the year ended 31 December
HEt-A=1-BLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=F —E-CF —Eo-F —E-% —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFT BETFT EETFIT BETT EEFIL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE
Total assets BE®E 1,355,882 1,441,765 1,547,484 1,874,076 1,891,034
Total liabilities BREE (661,598) (624,899) (622,639) (681,729) (733.924)
Net assets EEFE 694,284 816,866 924,846 1,192,347 1,157,110
Non-controliing interests FiERER 345,143 394,874 434,055 460,894 512,931
Equity attributable to owners KAREE NEL#ER
of the Company 349,141 421,992 490,791 731,453 644,179
EREREBERA A 135
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
HELD BY THE GROUP
SEMERY=—8BEX

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #EZE—T=-_=F+_HA=+—HIEFE

Approximate

136

Group's site area
interests (sq.ft.)  Existing use
HBEBENOE

Location 1t B rEBzER (EAR) RRAE

Unit 901, 903, 905, 906 BRHIER 100% 2,501 Rental
9/F Wings Building, EFARBER 101165 HE
110-116 Queen’s Road Central, KEEEAEIER
Central, Hong Kong 901~ 903 * 905 * 906 =

Unit 902 and 904, BEEFR 100% 892 Office
9/F Wings Building, EFRBR10-1165% WAE
110-116 Queen’s Road Central, KIEERNEIE
Central, Hong Kong 902 904 F

10/F, Wings Building, BEEFR 100% 3,393 Rental
110-116 Queen’s Road Central, EFRBR 101165 HneE
Central, Hong Kong KEEERE0E

Workshop No. 5 on 4/F, B8 100% 1,402 Rental
Fullagar Industrial Building, BBFRE 2345 HE
234 Aberdeen Main Road, EnL¥ERE
Hong Kong AESSETHER

Ccommercial Podium (Shop) BEERBEEH1RHEES 51% 28,923 Rental
On Lower Ground Floor, WHEE - TEE - HE

Upper Ground Floor, First Floor,
Second Floor, Third Floor and Offices

and Flat Roof on Forth Floor,

and the 3 External Signage Spaces

— The Remaining Portions of
The External Walls of
Silver Fortune Plaza,

No.1 Wellington Street, Hong Kong

—8- 8 ZBIE¥
Ta(EH) mIEZRAE
BR & AR = EsM R iR
ZER— T IMNER D
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